
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

North Planning 
Committee 

  

To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman) 

Councillor John Morgan (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Jem Duducu 

Councillor Duncan Flynn 

Councillor Raymond Graham 

Councillor Henry Higgins 

Councillor Manjit Khatra 

Councillor John Oswell 

Councillor Jazz Dhillon 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY 20 JUNE 2017 
 

 

Time: 7.30 PM,  OR UPON THE 
RISING OF THE MAJOR 
APPLICATIONS PLANNING 
COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER 
IS LATEST 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  
Published: Monday 12 June 2017 

 Contact: Anisha Teji  
Tel: 01895 277655 
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk  

 
This Agenda is available online at: 
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=116&Year=0 

Public Document Pack



Useful information for  

residents and visitors 
 

Watching & recording this meeting 
 
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting 
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived 
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also 
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report 
on the public part of the meeting. Any individual or 
organisation may record or film proceedings as long 
as it does not disrupt proceedings.  
 
It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should 
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist. 
 
When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices. 

 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with 
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee Room.  
 

Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use.  
 

Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations. 

 

 



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 

 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security 
Officer.  

 

Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 

telephones before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more people who live, work or study in the 
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in 
support of or against an application.  Petitions 
must be submitted in writing to the Council in 
advance of the meeting.  Where there is a 
petition opposing a planning application there is 
also the right for the applicant or their agent to 
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.   

Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  

Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 

 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  

Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   

The procedure will be as follows:-  

1. The Chairman will announce the report;  

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 
followed by any Ward Councillors; 

 

4. The Committee may ask questions of the 

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  

Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  

When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   

If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  

 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 

Chairman's Announcements 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  

3 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent  

4 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered 
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

 

 

PART I - Members, Public and Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this.  The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the 
address of the premises or land concerned. 
 

Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

5 Eastcote Service 
Station -  
 
3689/ADV/2017/16 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Installation of 9 x internally 
illuminated signs and 1 x non 
illuminated sign. 
 
Recommendation: Split 
Decision 

1 - 18 
 

112 - 119 

6 3 Olivia Gardens - 
  

4672/APP/2017/765 
 
 

Harefield 
 

Outbuilding to rear for use as an 
office/games room. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

19 - 28 
 

120 - 123 

7 4 Albany Close - 
 

72581/APP/2017/1057 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

Conversion of roof space to 
habitable use to include 1 x front 
and 3 x rear dormers and 
conversion of roof from hip to 
gable end with a Juliette Balcony. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

29 - 36 
 

124 - 128  



 

8 53-55 The Broadway, 
Joel Street -  
 
5564/APP/2016/3908 
 
 

Northwood 
Hills 
 

Change of use of the 1st and 2nd 
floors to a 24 hour gym (Class 
D2). 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

37 - 52 
 

129 - 143  

 

Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

9 50 Rodney Gardens -  
 
45146/APP/2017/1639 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Removal of fascia to rear 
elevation; alterations to single 
storey rear extension including 
pitched roof with crown; new 
brickwork to match existing; 
retention of extension once 
altered. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

53 - 64 
 

144 - 147  

10 78a The Drive -  
 
38308/APP/2017/1130 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

Roof extensions to provide 
additional space at first floor level 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

65 - 74 
 

148 - 155  

11 54 Parkfield Road -  
 
20899/APP/2016/2376 
 
 

West 
Ruislip 
 

Two x 2-storey dwellings with 
habitable roof space, outbuildings 
to rear, installation of vehicular 
crossover to front and associated 
landscaping works, involving 
demolition of existing bungalow. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

75 - 90 
 

156 - 169  

 

PART II - Members Only 
 
The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or exempt 
information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985 as amended. 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

12 ENFORCEMENT REPORT     91 - 104 

13 ENFORCEMENT REPORT   105 - 110 

PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee                         111 - 170  



This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

EASTCOTE MOTOR SERVICES HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE 

Installation of 9 x internally illuminated signs and 1 x non illuminated sign

30/01/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 3689/ADV/2017/16

Drawing Nos: WPS-MRH179-23 Rev B

WPS-MRH179-22 Rev B

WPS-MRH179-21 Rev B

WPS-MRH179-20 Rev A

Location Plan

WPS-MRH179-15

Date Plans Received: 30/01/2017Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The site is located on the northern side of High Road and is currently occupied by a petrol
filling station which includes a forecourt with canopy structure above, a single-storey shop
building and associated infrastructure. The filling station is currently in the final stages of
construction and is a replacement of a previous station that occupied the site.

The site is located within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area and is on a section of
road that is bordered by mature trees and hedging as well as grass verging, generating a
verdant character and appearance. The trees on the northern side of High Road are the
subject of a blanket Tree Preservation Order (TPO).

Two-storey residential dwellings on Flag Walk are located on the opposite side of the road
to the site. The rear elevations of these dwellings are set back from the High Road but face
out towards it. Rear boundaries are marked by approximately 2 metre high brick walling. 

The Black Horse Public House, which is a Grade II Listed buildings is located on the
opposite side of the road to the east. Nearby to the north-east on the same side of the road
is a cluster of residential dwellings, including Willow Tree Cottage which adjoins the site. 

The River Pinn passes to the rear of the site and the river bank includes trees, scrub and
patches of grassland which extends to border High Road to the west of the site.
Residential dwellings on Sutton Close back on to the opposite bank of the river.

The proposal involves the installation of a variety of advertisements on the new service
station buildings. The advertisements proposed are as follows:-

3 x  plastic and metal fascia panel signs to be attached to the side of the canopy roof.
These signs will be mounted on the east, south and west elevations respectively. The east

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

03/02/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

and west facing panels will be red and white with ESSO branding in red. The south (front)
facing panel will be red and white with no lettering. Each panel sign will be mounted on the
canopy, 4.5 metres above ground level and will be 0.85 metres in height. Each panel will
run along the full length of the side of the canopy roof on which it is mounted. The white
parts of the panel, which are positioned to the lower part of the sign and behind the lettering
and the red box elements on the upper part of the sign will not be illuminated. Each
individual character within the red ESSO lettering will be internally illuminated at a level of
400 candelas per m².

1 x non-illuminated panel sign will be mounted on the remaining side elevation of the
canopy, facing north towards the River Pinn. The height of the panel will match that of the
other canopy panels and it will also run the full length of the northern side of the canopy.
The panel will be white, with no other colours or lettering included.

1 x shop front fascia panel sign. The fascia panel will encompass the full shop frontage and
also wrap round to the side (southern) elevation. The fascia will include two panels
measuring approximately 1.09 metres in width by 0.625 metres in height that display
branding for the shop. These will be mounted on the shop front above the ATM and on the
side facing fascia panel respectively. The details on the submitted plans are different to the
signs which have been put up, which advertise a Co-Op store. The panels include
internally illuminated lettering at 60 candelas per m². The majority of the panel will not be
illuminated but will be segmented with vertical red LED bead lights between joints. The
panel will be a single colour and include a small amount of non-illuminated lettering.

1 x irregularly shaped feature panel sign attached to the shop front. This will measure 5.635
metres at greatest height and 3.135 metres in width at the top, tapering to 1.745 metres
width at the base. The panel will feature an array of separate internally illuminated panel
signs which would advertise services available at the petrol station. These would consist of
a column of four non-illuminated panels each measuring 1.29 metres in width by 0.5
metres in height.  Above this column would be a larger non-illuminated panel measuring
1.29 metres in width by 1.775 metres in height. 

2 x projecting signs to be mounted over the two rearmost pump islands. These will project
1.2 metres from the canopy column and will be raised 2.89 metres above ground level. The
word 'Synergy' as well as branding will be included. The sign itself will not be illuminated
but an LED lighting strip will be provided along the underside, illuminating at a level of 200
candelas per m².

2 x totem style signs which consist of 'Synergy' branding mounted on a hook shaped panel
which will be anchored to the ground and project over the two front pump islands. Overall
height of the signs will be 3.24 metres with the underside at 2.89 metres above ground.
The panel and branding will not be illuminated but the inside edge of the sign will include an
LED lighting strip which will provide illumination at a level of 200 candelas per m².

The existing flag sign which incorporates the petrol pricing information display will be
modified, with new components being added and internal illumination being provided.

3689/ADV/2005/110 Q8 Petroleum Ltd  High Road Eastcote 

INSTALLATION OF INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FREE-STANDING DISPLAY UNIT

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 2



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3689/ADV/2005/90

3689/ADV/2007/40

3689/AF/87/3132

3689/APP/2015/2851

3689/APP/2016/2111

3689/APP/2016/3434

3689/APP/2016/3605

3689/APP/2016/3801

Q8 Service Station High Road Eastcote 

Texaco  High Road Eastcote 

Eastcote Motor Services High Road Eastcote 

Eastcote Motor Services High Road Eastcote 

Eastcote Motor Services High Road Eastcote 

Eastcote Motor Services High Road Eastcote 

Eastcote Motor Services High Road Eastcote 

Eastcote Motor Services High Road Eastcote 

INSTALLATION OF AN INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FREESTANDING SIGN (RETROSPECTIVE

APPLICATION)

RETENTION OF INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FREE-STANDING TOTEM SIGN

Installation of part internally illuminated fascia

Erection of petrol filling station, shop and canopy, including underground tanks and demolition of

existing petrol station

Details pursuant to conditions 3 (Materials), 4 (Written Statement of Investigation), 5 (Sustainable

Water Management) and 9 (Nature Conservation Scheme) of planning permission Ref:

3689/APP/2015/2851 dated 23/12/2015 (Erection of petrol filling station, shop and canopy,

including underground tanks and demolition of existing petrol station)

Details pursuant to conditions 3 (Materials), 4 (Written Scheme of Investigation) and 9 ((Nature

Conservation Scheme) of planning permission Ref: 3689/APP/2015/2851 dated 23/12/2015

(Erection of petrol filling station, shop and canopy, including underground tanks and demolition of

existing petrol station)

Details pursuant to condition 5 (Sustainable Water Management) of planning permission Ref:

3689/APP/2015/2851 dated 23/12/2015 (Erection of petrol filling station, shop and canopy,

including underground tanks and demolition of existing petrol station)

Variation of condition No. 2 (Approved Plans) of planning permission ref:3689/APP/2015/2851

dated 23/12/2015 to relocate the staff parking, alter the location of the shop, increase canopy

height, alterations of various glazed elements and relocation of the bin store. (Erection of petrol

filling station, shop and canopy, including underground tanks and demolition of existing petrol

station

30-12-2005

30-09-2005

08-10-2009

07-01-1988

23-12-2015

29-07-2016

15-11-2016

06-03-2017

26-05-2017

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Approved

Refused

Approved

Approved

Refused

Approved

Approved

Approved

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

04-MAY-06 Dismissed

Page 3



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The main approval for the redevelopment of the site (3689/APP/2015/2851) included a
condition requiring a scheme to protect and enhance the nature conservation interest of the
site to be submitted to the Council and approved prior to commencement of development.
A suitable scheme was approved under 3689/APP/2016/3434 and included details relating
to the control of external illumination in order to protect the habitat value of the River Pinn
corridor. An extract of the report is included below:-

4.0 A sensitive lighting scheme will be implemented on site to ensure that opportunities
for light sensitive species, such as brown long-eared bats, are maintained on site
and within the river corridor. Light spill will aim to be limited to no more than a 2 lux
increase above existing light levels across the buffer and the river itself, as this will act as a
dark area for wildlife. This will be based in the following rationale: 

- Light spill will be minimised - this will include ensuring that there is no light spill onto
retained trees on site or the river buffer. The spread of lighting will be kept below the
horizontal.

- Narrow spectrum bulbs will be used to lower the range of species affected by lighting.
Bulbs that emit minimal UV light will be used, in particular those that avoid white and blue
wavelengths. Emitted light should peak higher than 500nm or use glass covers that filter
UV wavelengths. 

- Any lighting columns should be reduced in height.

- The timing of lighting should be reduced to a minimum and include unlit periods.

- The use of reflective surfaces under lights should be avoided.

4.10 The current lighting proposals for the site (Appendix III) include: 

- Reduced height of riverside columns to 2.5m

- Shields added to the riverside lights will direct spill forwards and below the horizontal. 

- Canopy lights subject to PIR sensors and will reduce lighting levels to 30% of normal
output after a period of inactivity. 

- Peripheral lights subject to PIR sensors and will be turned off after a period of inactivity.

4.11 The proposals result in a residual light spill across the buffer and river corridor, the
majority of which the canopy lights are responsible for in combination with reflective
surfaces used in construction.

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

A site notice was displayed on a lamp post opposite the site. In addition, the occupants of 9

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 4



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

neighbouring properties were sent a letter notifying them that the application had been
submitted and inviting comments.

A total of 11 letters of objection, from 6 separate addresses, have been received a
summary is provided below:-

A previous illuminated flag sign on site was refused. Other Esso stations do not have these
signs. The canopy signs cannot be seen from the road anyway. Would be out of character
with the street scene and the Eastcote Village Conservation Area. The service station is
already a well used facility and does not need so much advertising. Repositioned flag sign
would overhang boundary. Lights already have been switched on and too many changes
have been made already. The sign that looks like a sail is particularly unacceptable. Light
shines into the bedrooms of houses opposite. Signs will be an urbanising and over
dominant presence within the village. Illuminations should be switched of between 22:00
and 06:00. No need for lights on pump signs as the flood lighting alone is sufficient.
Illuminations on the ATM machine are a nuisance. There are too many different colours on
the flag sign. Suggest that Councillors before making such controversial decisions on
environmental issues such as these (less than 50 feet from homes), should attend a
lighting demonstration that some local residents did at 9-45pm one evening. The
comparison of light emissions to that of a full moon is not a valid argument.

Petition of objection with 33 signatories. Summary: The signs will interfere with our daily
lives and the surrounding area due to light pollution in addition to that produced by existing
lighting.

OFFICER COMMENT: The ATM signage is not part of this application and its presence will
therefore be a matter for potential enforcement action. Amenity impact of the proposed
advertising will be discussed within the main body of this report.

EASTCOTE CONSERVATION PANEL:

Four new drawings were added to this application 27th April 2017. The email dated 10th
April and the attached letter dated 27th February dealing with previous drawings are
forwarded for ease.

Regrettably there is still not a full lighting survey submitted with these drawings, which we
were promised in February 2017.

It would also appear that the request for an extra condition from the NPC 22nd February to
have the shop lights turned down at night has not been enacted. Both omissions are a
disgrace. The points made in previous submissions for this application still apply here. It
must be noted that as well as these proposed illuminated signs, there is a fully lit canopy,
lighting inside the shop and various other lights and floodlight within this area, this is why a
full lighting survey is
needed.

The only reduction in the illuminations is the removal of illumination from the shop sign.
This sign is far too big with or without lighting, it sticks up above the roof of the shop and is
a most ugly addition to the Conservation Area.

The MRH logo is still illuminated, the bright red LED lighting all along the length of the fascia
is still present.

Page 5



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The canopy is now shown with the Esso sign, illuminated on three sides.

The 'Flag pole sign' is over large ,with every section illuminated. As stated before this will
cause the same problems as the previous sign which had to be turned off as it was a
danger to motorists. It is also far too close to the houses opposite and will be a permanent
nuisance shining into bedroom windows. It should be considered, that sleep deprivation is
against a person's human rights, it is considered a form of torture, therefore, the LPA
cannot knowingly approve this sign.

The Esso 'Blade components' x 4 and the 'Wave components' x 4 need not have any form
of illumination all are under the canopy which is brightly lit. To conform with Communities
and Local Government publication Outdoor advertisements and signs: a guide for
advertisers none of the illuminated signs should be allowed, and the size of
the signs need to be drastically reduced. The guidance is 'The total permitted area for all
forecourt advertisements must not exceed 4.6. square meters' this proposal far exceeds
that limit.

Without a lighting survey the light pollution to the River Pinn is unknown, but commonsense
would indicate the pollution is going to at an unacceptable level. This part of the
Conservation Area has a low level of lighting therefore this proposal will appear over
dominant and totally unsuitable.

There can be no compromise in this location this application must be refused.

EASTCOTE RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION:

This application for 9 illuminated and 1 non-illuminated advertising signs comes against the
background of what are now of 2 approved applications for this site for which I have been
unable to find, on line, a full lighting scheme, ie showing lighting to the forecourt - under
canopy lighting details and then retail outlet lighting, plus any additional general lighting that
might be required for the designated parking areas etc, with overall details of all required
lighting output levels and
potential spill into all the surrounding areas.

I do note that some information on lighting is given in the Ecosulis Ecological Protection &
Enhancement Strategy, provided by the Applicant to discharge Condition 9 of the approved
application, regarding a Nature Conservation Scheme. However, this has various
shortcomings - it is not now current in terms of encompassing the lighting implications of
the recently approved Condition 2 amendments. It states it provides 'initial lighting
calculations', ie is not a full lighting scheme. In terms of the most critical and concerning
issue for residents, it does not address at all the
effects of the lighting (brightness and spill) on the nearby houses. It focuses on the
implications for the river and wildlife, but states that light spill will aim to be limited to be no
more than a 2 lux increase above existing levels across the buffer and the river itself. We
understand that typical limitations for the river are 0 to 2 lux in total, so a 2 lux increase on
an unknown existing level is somewhat worrying.

Furthermore, this report was not able to include an assessment of this current application
for illuminated signage which, with the numbers of signs and the level of illumination
suggested, would seem to substantially increase the amount of light on the site and the
potential for the overall effects of signage and general lighting, together, to severely impact
on the surrounding area, both in ecological terms and in relation to residents suffering the

Page 6



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

effects of lighting spill and pollution in their homes and gardens. This has already occurred
in the past when ultimately both some general lights and illuminated signs had to be turned
off due to Police concerns over drivers being dazzled and the fact that the light shone into
the bedrooms of houses in Flag Walk.

At the North Planning Committee Meeting on 22nd February, to determine application
3689/APP/2016/380 for variations to Condition 2, it was inferred that a full lighting scheme
had already been provided, and thus such predetermined conditions could not be
revoked/taken into consideration by the Committee in relation to their determination of the
Condition 2 variations. After the NPC meeting, I emailed James Rodger, asking for
information as to where I could find this scheme from the Applicant. I received the following
response from James - 'The applicant has not yet provided full lighting details. The case
officer has been told to request further information. Full re-consultation will occur when
such details are received.' I take from James's response that you have contacted or will be
contacting the Applicant for further information and that, when such information is received,
you will ensure that all concerned have the right to make further comments in a re-
consultation process that you will initiate, with a new date for such comments to be
received.

I believe that it is essential that all proposed lighting elements, general and these
illuminated signs are considered together, to be able to come to an informed view of their
implications as a whole. However, in the meanwhile, as the current deadline for this
advertising application requires comments by 28th February, I would state the following in
relation to the application:-

The service station is situated in a conversation area (Eastcote Village) and in a particularly
rural setting, in that it is surround by trees, grass and shrubbery, with the River Pinn behind
it.

I understand that you must assess this application as against the guidelines detailed in the
Communities and Local Government 'Outdoor Advertisements and Signs' 2007. Because
of its setting, the ecological issues and the closeness of houses, particularly across the
road, we cannot stress too strongly how important we feel it is that these guidelines be
strictly adhered to in all respects in this instance.

We would particularly refer to the following:-

· Class 4 illuminated signs do not extend to conservation areas.

· Anyway, Class 6 information states that advertisements on forecourts must not be
illuminated in any circumstances.

· In addition, this document provides much information on the height, size and square
meterage that are acceptable for signs and it seems these requirements are being flouted
at every turn in this application.

For example -

The total permitted area in one forecourt for advertisements is 4.6 square metres - here,
just one sign, the flag sign, is 7.03 square metres.

- This same sign is 6.5 metres high in total, when the guidelines state that signs should not

Page 7



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

be higher off the ground than 4.6 metres. Similarly the feature sign to the front of the shop
is 5.635 metres high. At these heights, being on the front boundary and illuminated, they will
definitely cast light on the Flag Walk houses.

- Furthermore, from the drawing, the newly positioned flag sign to the front of the site now
looks as if
its base is outside the demise and thus on public ground. It would certainly appear that the
sign will
overhang the boundary.

In relation to the houses in Flag Walk, below is a photograph that is taken from the
bedroom window of No 4 which shows just how close these houses are to the Petrol
Station. The distance from the back garden wall to the boarder of the site is only some 13
metres and the garden lengths are c8.7 metres. It seems obvious that all the illuminated
signs are going to have some impact, particularly when combined with the under canopy
lights, the illuminated signs on the canopy facia, the shop lighting and the various proposed
spotlights. The height of the canopy will further contribute to this as the under-side is now
to be at 4.5 metres, with the facia adding a further .85 metres in height, Therefore the wall
that runs along the back of all the Flag Walk houses on the  Eastcote Road will offer no
screening as it is substantially lower - 2.44 metres at the highest point where one house
has added fencing panels to the top of the wall.

We ask that this application be refused. 

OFFICER COMMENT: The DCLG publication referred to is a guidance document. The
classes of advertisement referred to, and the restrictions on size, positioning and
illumination relate to signage that can be erected under deemed consent (without the need
to apply to the Local Authority for permission). This is an application for express consent
and, as such, these restriction are not applicable.

COUNCIL'S LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

This application is for signage, some of which will be on the building. The free-standing
signs are well clear of the existing trees and should pose no risk to them provided that the
underground cable runs do not involve trenching through the root protection areas.

No objection and no need for landscape conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (EPU):

Any light installed shall operate in accordance with details which have previously been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall
include location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination, so
as not to cause nuisance to nearby businesses/offices/dwellings. Any lighting that is so
installed shall not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local
Planning Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details. 

HIGHWAYS:

No objection.

CONSERVATION & URBAN DESIGN:

Page 8



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.EM3 (2012) Blue Ribbon Network

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

BE13

BE27

BE28

BE29

BE34

BE4

DAS-SF

LPP 7.24

LPP 7.28

LPP 7.4

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location

Shop fronts - design and materials

Advertisement displays on business premises

Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on rivers

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Shopfronts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Blue Ribbon Network

(2016) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

(2016) Local character

Part 2 Policies:

This site is located in a quiet area, on a narrow strip of land between the River Pinn and the
Eastcote Road, in Eastcote Village Conservation Area. There is a large, densely treed area
of open space on one side, a large garden on the other and
houses on the opposite side of the road.

The Garage is proposing a number of signs. Some of these are reasonably required to
advertise its presence to passing motorists, but others are considered to be excessive as
they would be potentially very striking, over-dominant and incongruous in such a context.
The following fall into this category:

1. The illuminated red fascia signs, on three of the four sides, each 16,700mm long. The
Esso letters could be individually illuminated, but the fascia itself should be non-illuminated.

2. The tall 'feature' sign, some 5630mm high, to face west down the High Road, would
have illuminated signs within it. This would be very dominant indeed and replicate the
information on the flag sign. This should be non-illuminated.

3. The MRH letters, which are 425mm high, and the roundel advertising a 24 hour service,
which would be 625mm high, would be placed on the front facade of the shop and on the
end elevation, which would be close to the road. The location on the front facade might be
acceptable, but again the site on the roadside elevation would be much too dominant if
internally illuminated.

Although the flag sign would replace an existing sign, the previous garage used a softer
illumination, following representations by local residents. The details of this are not known,
but the intensity of the illumination does need to be very carefully considered.

4.

Page 9



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 7.5

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.8

NPPF

NPPF7

OE1

(2016) Public realm

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Requiring good design

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the
local area

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

AMENITY IMPACT:

Para. 67 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) instructs that control over
advertisements should be exercised only in the interests of amenity and public safety,
taking into account cumulative impacts. 

The proposed advertisements would be located at an established service station site and
would be distributed around the forecourt and buildings and have a number of different
aspects. The site is located on a section of road that is verdant in appearance owing to the
amount of mature landscaping and grass verge which flanks the majority of the northern
side of the road, extending to the River Pinn. Opposite the site is residential development
although nearby to the east there is a public house as well as a parade of retail units, all of
which feature fascia and / or projecting signs. The road is also lined by street lighting which
introduces residual illumination during hours of darkness and there is also an illuminated
traffic sign opposite the site.

The proposed scheme will introduce various signage, some of which will be internally
illuminated. It is considered that, provided the intensity of illumination, and the overall
illuminated area of the signage is kept to a minimum, the advertisements can be
accommodated without degrading the overall character and appearance of the
Conservation Area. 

- CANOPY ROOF FASCIA SIGNAGE:

With regard to the canopy fascia signage, these are distributed around the four aspects of
the canopy roof sides, with the panel facing the River Pinn being finished in plain white.
Illumination is restricted to low level internal lettering to the ESSO letter sets on the east
and west (side) facing signs and the north facing sign is non-illuminated. Due to the small
surface area that will be illuminated, the low intensity of the illumination and the absence of
illumination for the north and south facing panels, it is not considered that the canopy
signage would result in unacceptable light spillage towards the River Pinn and its banks or
windows of habitable rooms on Flag Walk and would also not appear out of keeping with
the surrounding area given the presence of street lighting at a similar height.

Although the overall length of the panel signage is fairly significant, the bulk of the sign
consists of two colours, without any branding and it is considered that this is not dissimilar
from standard fascia panels for a canopy roof structure. Conditions will be attached to any
approval both restricting the area of the signs that may be illuminated and also limiting the
level of illumination so that it is appropriate on amenity grounds.

Providing these controls are applied and adhered to, it is considered that these signs would

Page 10



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

comply with Policies BE 4, BE 13, BE 27, BE 29 and OE 1 of the  Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies 7.4, 7.5 and 7.8 of the
London Plan (2016).

- SHOP FRONT FASCIA PANEL:

The shop fascia panel has been installed and does not reflect the appearance of the
submitted drawings. This, in itself, can be regarded as acceptable as para. 3 (4) of Part 1
of The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations
2007 states that 'unless it appears to the local planning authority to be required in the
interests of amenity or public safety, an express consent for the display of advertisements
shall not contain any limitation or restriction relating to the subject matter, content or design
of what is to be displayed.' 

The fascia sign wraps around the southern (front) and western (side) elevation of the
building. It features two illuminated panel signs of similar size and position, although a
different design, to that shown on the submitted plans. One of these panels is mounted on
the front facing fascia whilst the other is positioned to the side, facing out on to High Road.

An illuminated panel to the front facing fascia is considered to be acceptable as it will face
out on to the illuminated forecourt area and is discrete in terms of positioning and size. It
will not face in the direction of any habitable room windows at nearby residential properties,
is at low level and will be partially screened by the canopy roof and is not illuminated to a
significant intensity. As such, it is not considered that it will detract from the appearance of
the Conservation Area or the amenities of neighbouring residents. The side facing
illuminated panel sign is also considered to be acceptable due to its modest size, low
intensity of illumination and the fact that it will be lower than the height of first floor windows
on Flag Walk that face towards it and largely screened from view from ground floor
windows on the same properties by the existing boundary treatment.

The majority of the fascia will be a simple, grey coloured panel with a small amount of non-
illuminated text. This text will not be overly dominant within the sign due to its modest size
and will be positioned at the opposite end of the front facing fascia sign to the illuminated
panel so as to prevent a cluttered appearance from arising. 

However, the panel design shown is segmented by equally spaced vertical red lighting
strips. These elements are not considered to be necessary and detract from the simple
and uncluttered appearance of the fascia, to the detriment of the character and appearance
of the Conservation Area. 

Provided these lighting beads are not included, and that all other illumination is strictly
controlled, it is considered that these advertisements would comply with Policies BE 4, BE
13, BE 27, BE 29 and OE 1 of the Local Plan and Policies 7.4, 7.5 and 7.8 of the London
Plan.

- FEATURE SIGN PANEL TO FRONT OF SHOP BUILDING:

This advertisement takes the form of a shard shaped brushed aluminium panel that would
be anchored to the ground and anchored against the shop front. The feature sign will
include a column of separate non-illuminated panel signs that will advertise the various
products and services available on site. This column will consist of four panels that would
each measure approximately 1 metre in width by 0.35 metres in height with a larger header

Page 11



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

panel measuring approximately 1 metre in width by 1.35 metres in height directly above. 

The sign background will have a brushed aluminium finish that is simple and will
complement the grey shop front fascia sign. The panels displayed will not be illuminated
and will be arranged in an orderly fashion so as not to appear as clutter. The sign will be
positioned adjacent to the shop building and will therefore not appear as an isolated or out
of context feature within the surrounding Conservation Area. The uppermost part of the
panel will project above the roof of the shop building but no to the extent that it would
appear overly dominant. It will also be set back from the highway and at orientated so that it
does not appear oppressive or overbearing within the context of the street scene.

This sign will not be illuminated nor will any other external lights point directly towards. As
such, it is not considered that it will generate any material increase in light emission by way
of its own illumination or by reflecting nearby lights on its surface.

The panel signs shown on the submitted plans are indicative but a condition will be
attached to any approval given restricting the size of any panel signs to be installed in the
future and also prohibiting any internal or external illumination so as to preserve the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

It is therefore considered that the proposed advertisement would comply with Policies BE
4, BE 13, BE 27, BE 29 and OE 1 of the Local Plan and Policies 7.4, 7.5 and 7.8 of the
London Plan.

- 'WAVE' AND 'BLADE' SIGNS POSITIONED OVER PUMP ISLANDS:

These signs are single colour features that are positioned entirely below the canopy roof
and include a small panel displaying corporate branding. It is considered that the
positioning of these signs adjacent to each petrol pumps ensures that they visually tie in
with these features and do not appear detached from the wider development. The
proposed signs include white LED strip lighting on their underside and leading edge which
is considered to be unnecessary, particularly given that the canopy roof already provides
adequate levels of illumination for customers. In addition, there are no barriers to prevent
light spillage from these features from intruding towards the River Pinn and its banks and,
thereby, detracting from the rural nature of the riparian landscape. It is also considered that
the illumination of these features, when viewed cumulatively with other illuminated
advertisements on site, would result in a proliferation of artificial light sources on the site
that would lead to a disruptive and discordant appearance within the Conservation Area out
of daylight hours.

Notwithstanding the illuminations attached to these signs, it is considered that they
introduce a cluttered appearance to the site and, when viewed cumulatively with other
advertisements, would represent an over proliferation of advertising within the site. Policy
BE 29 of the Local Plan specifically aims to limit the amount of advertisements on any one
site so as to prevent clutter and, as such, the signage is considered to be contrary to this
policy as well as Local Plan Policies BE 13 and BE 4 which seek to protect the character
and appearance of the Conservation Area. Furthermore, additional light intrusion towards
the River Pinn would be unacceptable and the signage is therefore considered to fail to
satisfy policy BE 34 of the Local Plan and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

The provision of additional lighting beneath the canopy also conflict with the approved
Ecological Protection and Enhancement Strategy attached to the overall development of

Page 12



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the site (as per 3689/APP/2016/3434) which states that 'lighting will be kept to a minimum
on site. If required, lighting will be directional away from retained habitats.'

- FLAG SIGN:

The proposed flag sign is to be retained in its current position although a number of
modifications are proposed to its components, most notably the introduction of numerical
LED price indicators and a collection of illuminated panel signs featuring the main ESSO
branding as well as advertisements for services and products available on site. The front
and rear aspects of all panels will include branding and internal illumination and will be
visible within the street scene.

There is a precedent for illuminated flag signage on the site, following the approval of an
earlier sign when the station was run by Texaco, as approved under application
3689/ADV/2005/90. A condition of the approval for this application was that further details of
the intensity of illumination for the sign were to be submitted to and approved by the
Council. These details were never provided and a subsequent application
(3689/ADV/2007/40) for an illuminated flag sign was refused due to inadequate details on
illumination intensity being provided. An informative was included with the refusal notice
stating that a maximum level of illumination of 350 candelas per m² would be appropriate
for any such signage.

The current configuration of the sign includes a column of four panels, two of which would
provide pricing information. Each panel would measure approximately 1.6 metres in width
by 0.4 metres in height. The pricing panels include illuminated LED digits whilst the other
panels would feature internal illumination and interchangeable branding. A larger internally
illuminated panel, approximately 1.6 metres in width by 1.35 metres in height would be
displayed above the smaller panels. 

The main ESSO branding would be mounted at the top of the sign on an internally
illuminated panel measuring 1.9 metres in width by 1.425 metres in height. 

It is considered that the flag signage would be an acceptable feature provided light output is
strictly controlled so as to prevent unacceptable spillage into the wider surrounding area
and towards the windows of habitable rooms, particularly those at 30 - 32 Flag Walk . A
flag sign of similar proportions has been present at the site for a number of years in a
variety of forms and this has included permission for illumination at times. 

It is understood that the sign will remain in its original position, as this is where it has been
re-erected on site, and will not project any further towards the highway or neighbouring
properties. The individual panels on the lower part of the sign are of uniform size and are
organised neatly so as to prevent any sense of clutter.

It is therefore considered that the flag signage would be in compliance with Policies BE 4,
BE 13, BE 27, BE 29 and OE 1 of the Local Plan and Policies 7.4, 7.5 and 7.8 of the
London Plan.

- INTENSITY OF ILLUMINATION:

Notwithstanding the figures provided on the accompanying drawings, summary documents
and application form, it is considered that given the sensitivity of the site, which is within a
Conservation Area and also backs onto the River Pinn which is part of the Blue Ribbon

Page 13



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ADVERT1 Standard Condition1

RECOMMENDATION6.

Network justifies strict controls in the intensity of illumination of each advertisement. This
should take into account previous advice issued by the Council that the brightest parts of
any given advert should not exceed 350 candelas per m². 

Provided such controls are adhered to, it is considered that the approved signs would be in
compliance with policies BE 4, BE 13, BE 27, BE 29 and OE 1 of the Local Plan and
Policies 7.4, 7.5 and 7.8 of the London Plan.

PUBLIC SAFETY:

The signage will be visible to road users and is designed to attract a certain level of
attention from road users. It is important that the need to attract attention is balanced
against any potential hazard. The Council's highways engineers have reviewed the
application and have not raised any objections on the grounds of road safety. Furthermore,
the advertisements will not be sited in a position where they would obstruct pedestrian
movements or overhang areas within the public domain. Any approval given will be subject
to the standard condition requiring all advertisements to be maintained in a safe condition
at all times.

It is therefore considered that the proposed signage would accord with Local Plan Policies
AM 7 and BE 27.

CONCLUSION:

It is considered that the majority of the advertisements applied for would be acceptable,
subject to restrictions on the level of illumination, having regard to the location of the site
within Eastcote Village Conservation Area as well as the proximity of the site to the River
Pinn and nearby residential properties.

However, it is considered that illuminated signage above the pump islands would introduce
an unacceptable intensification of lighting beneath the canopy roof that would result in light
spillage towards the banks of the River Pinn, compromising its rural character and
appearance and causing habitat disturbance. These signs would also lead to an over
proliferation of light sources within the site which would result in a disorderly and confused
appearance within the wider conservation area during hours of darkness.

The red beading shown on the shop fascia signs is also considered unacceptable as it is
not a necessary feature for the advertising displayed and would appear cluttered and
visually unsympathetic towards its surroundings.

A split decision is therefore recommended in order to approve all signs, subject to
conditions, other than the pump island signs and the red beading on the shop front.

This is a SPLIT DECISION, part approved, part refused.

Page 14



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ADVERT4 Intensity of Illumination

APPROVAL CONDITION 1:

All advertisement consents carry the following 5 standard conditions as contained in the
Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 1992 and unless
specified to the contrary the consent expires after 5 years.

i)No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.

ii) No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to:-

(a) Endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome
(civil or military);

(b) Obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to
navigation by water or air or;

(c) Hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance or
for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

iii) Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall
be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.

iv) Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public.

v) Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site
shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity. 

vi) The consent hereby granted shall expire at the end of a period of five years from the
date of this consent.

REASON
These requirements are deemed to be attached by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

APPROVAL CONDITION 2:

The intensity of illumination of the advertisements shall not exceed:

A maximum of 350 candelas per m² on the forecourt canopy fascia signs, restricted to the
letter set only. No other parts of these signs shall be illuminated at any time.

A maximum of 350 candelas per m² on the top panel of the flag sign which measures 1.9
metres in width by 1.425 metres in height. All other advertisement panels and price
indicators shall be illuminated to a maximum intensity of 60 candelas per m². No other
parts of this sign may be illuminated.

A maximum of 60 candelas per m² for the individual lettering within the shop fascia logo
signs on the western and southern shop fascia boards. The area of illuminated lettering
shall not exceed 1.09 metres by 0.425 metres on any aspect. No other parts of the fascia
board shall be illuminated.

2

Page 15



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ADV2

ADVERT5

NONSC

R1

Non-illumination (Signs)

Type of illumination

Non Standard Condition

Advertisements - Refusal 1

REASON
To ensure that the brightness of the proposed advertisement(s) will not have an adverse
effect on the amenities of the area and to avoid distraction to passing motorists in
accordance with  Policies BE 4, BE 13, BE 27 and OE 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

APPROVAL CONDITION 3:

Notwithstanding the submitted details, no signs shall be illuminated other than the
forecourt canopy sign, restricted to the letter set only, the top panel and smaller price
display and advertising panels on the flag sign and the individual lettering of the western
and southern fascia boards.

REASON
In order to protect the visual amenity of the area and/or highway safety in accordance with
Policies BE 4, BE 13, BE 27 and OE 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

APPROVAL CONDITION 4:

The illumination of the signs is to be by fixed and constant lights and not by lights which
are, or appear to be, intermittent, moving, flashing or vibrating. All illumination is to be by
internal lighting.

REASON
In order to protect the visual amenity of the area and/or highway safety in accordance with
Policies BE 4, BE 13, BE 27 and OE 1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

APPROVAL CONDITION 5:

The size of individual advertisement panels within the flag and feature signs shall not
exceed the dimensions of the panels shown on the approved plans at any time.

REASON
In order to protect the visual amenity of the area and/or highway safety in accordance with
Policies BE 4, BE 13, BE 27 and OE 1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

REFUSAL REASON 1:

The proposed advertisements by reason of their size, siting, method of display, cluttered
appearance and unnecessary illumination would be unduly prominent within the
Conservation Area and detrimental to the visual amenities of the locality. Furthermore, the
illumination of these signs would result in additional light spillage towards the River Pinn
corridor, unacceptably compromising its role as a wildlife corridor as well as degrading its
rural nature. 

The proposal is therefore contrary to the Council's adopted policies BE 4, BE 13 and BE

3

4

5

6

Page 16



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

34 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

1

INFORMATIVES

James McLean Smith 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

This permission relates to the advertisements identified within the above
conditions only and does not purport to grant consent for any other
advertisements on site, including the illuminations surrounding the ATM installed
within the shopfront.

Page 17



House

Wincombe Court

1

3

New

43.3m

1

2
8
1

123

111

106

TUDOR

11

27

13

41 39

7

2

1
2

Pounden Court

B
L

A
G

R
O

V
E

 C
R

E

11 to 11

8

5

12

The B
la

ck H
ors

e

9

1116

Cottage

1

FLAG W
ALK

T
h
e R

o
sery

LB

9
0

SUTTO
N C

LO
SE

20

to

Flag

27

45.6m

Bower

121

81

83

29

109

1 to 13

AITKEN CLOSE

Barnet

ESS

1a

(P
H)

15

22

EASTCOTE

1

43.3m

Cottages

43.9m

3

House
Willow Tree

25

TCB

94

92a

1

Riv
er P

in
n

7
9

Bla
ck H

ors

32

4

14

3

S
P
R

IN
G

 D
R

IV
E

H
IG

H
 R

O
A
D

MOUNT PARK R
OAD

FB
D

ean
's C

o
ttag

e

92

Old Forge

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Eastcote Service Station

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

3689/ADV/2017/16

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 18



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3 OLIVIA GARDENS HAREFIELD

Outbuilding to rear for use as an office/games room.

28/02/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 4672/APP/2017/765

Drawing Nos: Report on the Impact on Trees, dated 6/5/15

1681/21

1681/20

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site is located at the South Eastern end of Olivia Gardens, a private gated
cul-de-sac. The proposed plot sits to the side of no 3 and to the rear of the flank wall to no.
2. The site currently forms part of the garden to no.3 including various outbuildings and a
detached double garage and brick paved parking area. The street scene is residential in
character comprising 4 large detached houses.

The application site lies within the Harefield Conservation Area and the 'Developed Area' as
identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). A
specimen Oak tree protected by TPO 632 is located in a neighbouring garden very close to
the Eastern boundary and overhangs the site.

The proposal is for erection of a rear outbuilding for use as an office/games room.

4672/APP/2004/3153

4672/APP/2004/3155

4672/APP/2005/774

3 Olivia Gardens Harefield

3 Olivia Gardens Harefield

3 Olivia Gardens Harefield

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY SIDE AND PART REAR EXTENSION, SINGLE STOREY

FRONT EXTENSION AND INGLENOOK CHIMNEY EXTENSION.  CONVERSION OF ENLARGED

ROOFSPACE TO HABITABLE USE WITH RE-ROOFING OF WHOLE HOUSE AND

INSTALLATION OF TWO REAR DORMER WINDOWS (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING

GARAGE)

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY DETACHED DOUBLE GARAGE AND GAMES ROOM

ERECTION OF A PART SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION AND PART TWO STOREY,

14-01-2005

14-01-2005

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Refused

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

28/02/2017Date Application Valid:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

54964/APP/2003/2524 - Erection of a three bedroom detached chalet bungalow and
detached garage (refused)
54964/APP/2000/678 - Erection of a five bed detached house (refused, dismissed at
appeal)

The previous applications were refused on the loss of the open unbuilt gap which would
detract from the character and appearance of the street scene and would not preserve the
character of the Conservation Area. Furthermore the Inspector on appeal considered the
scheme would pose a significant threat to the future health and viability of an important Oak
tree.

Not applicable 5th April 2017

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

External Consultees:

Neigbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 08/03/2017 and  a site
notice was displayed on 09/03/2017. A petition with 28 signatures has been received
together with 3 comments / objections.

The petition asked for the scheme to be rejected for the following reasons:-

(1) The development would not enhance the conservation area.
(2) Over development.
(3) Would materially reduce gap between properties.

4672/APP/2005/775

4672/TRE/2017/43

54964/APP/2016/1378

3 Olivia Gardens Harefield

3 Olivia Gardens Harefield

Land At 3 Olivia Gardens Harefield

PART SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION, FRONT INGLENOOK CHIMNEY AND

CONVERSION OF ROOFSPACE TO HABITABLE ACCOMMODATION INCLUDING THE

INSTALLATION OF TWO REAR DORMER WINDOWS (INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF AN

ATTACHED SIDE GARAGE)

ERECTION OF DETACHED SINGLE STOREY GARAGE AND SINGLE STOREY GAMES ROO

To carry out tree surgery, including the cutting back of overhanging lateral branches by up to 2m,

to one Oak (T1) on TPO 632.

Two storey, 4-bed detached dwelling with associated parking and amenity space.

22-09-2005

18-10-2005

05-04-2017

24-08-2016

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Approved

Approved

Withdrawn

Refused

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(4) Would restrict sight-lines.
(5) Would set a precedent.
(6) Insufficient detail re protection of trees.

One neighbour referred to a discussion with the applicant but again did not raise any
planning issues. One had no objections but requested a condition to ensure the property
remains ancillary to the main dwelling. One referred to issues associated with a tree which
overhangs the adjoining property.

Harefield Tenants and Residents' Association: - no objection subject to the building
remaining ancillary to the main dwelling.

Harefield Village Conservation Area Panel: No response.

Officers comments:- The issues are discussed in the report. There is no precedent in
planning, each application must be treated on its own merits.

Internal Consultees:

Access Officer. 

No response.

Conservation and Urban Design 

This site is located within the Harefield Village Conservation Area. Olivia Gardens is a small
modern cul-de-sac development off Northwood Road, comprising of modest sized
detached houses, each situated on proportionately sized plots. It is accessed via a private
gated road. The site as existing comprises of a two storey detached property situated on
an irregular shaped plot. The site is located in the corner of the cul-de-sac and is
characterised by mature trees. A significant mature protected oak tree is sited adjacent to
the site with its canopy extending over the site. There is a detached double garage to the
side of property, set at a distance to the East of the property allowing for a sizeable
'courtyard' style driveway. Any development would need to aim to preserve and/or enhance
the Conservation Area.

No detrimental impact should occur to the protected trees on and adjacent to the site, and
it is important that the trees are adequately safeguarded.

The site has been subject to various previous applications for a new dwelling on the site.
These have been refused in the past with one dismissed at appeal (most recent application
ref: 54964/APP/2016/1378).

Whilst the principle of an outbuilding may be considered admissible, there are concerns
regarding the scale of the outbuilding to the side of the main dwelling. The proposed
building would be set at an angle, in filling the gap between the existing detached garage
and property. Furthermore the addition of the building would also increase the developed
nature of the site and character of the cul-de-sac. There are concerns that the proposed
outbuilding could be separated from the main dwelling in the future. 

The design of the building has been designed in a similar form to the existing garage. The
design of the principle elevation facing onto the property's 'courtyard' style driveway

Page 21



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Part 2 Policies:

includes full length windows and a door accessed from the driveway. Whilst there are in
principle no objections to the full length openings to the rear it is recommended that the full
length openings to the principal elevation of the building are amended to casement
windows in keeping with the main house. Furthermore the access door would need to be
repositioned to the end gable (South-West side elevation) facing into the rear garden of the
site. All fenestration would need to match the main dwelling. Ideally the proposed roof lights
would need to be conservation type roof lights set flush within the roofline.

The height of the building would exceed that stated in the Council's adopted HDAS
residential extensions SPD, which states that ridge heights for outbuildings should not
exceed 4m. It is important that the proposed building is used as an ancillary building to the
main dwelling and not separated in the future. Therefore an appropriate condition would
need to be included as part of any approval. All materials, colours and external finishes
would need to match the existing property.

Officers comments - The conservation officers comments amount to a number of changes
that would be required to produce an acceptable scheme. The changes are considered to
be material, especially when also seen in the context of the guidance regarding scale and
use of outbuildings in the HDAS.  In view of the recommendation amendment has not been
sought.

Trees/Landscaping

This site is adjacent to TPO 632 and within the Harefield Village Conservation Area. There
are several large, mature, protected trees on and adjacent to this site. No trees will be
directly affected by the proposal although tree protection should be afforded to the trees to
the rear of the proposed games room. No objection subject to conditions RES8 and
RES10.

4.

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE24

BE38

H12

H4

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 7.2

HDAS-EXT

LDF-AH

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Mix of housing units

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) An inclusive environment

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted January 2010

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The site lies within an established residential area where there would be no objection in
principle to an outbuilding, subject to all other material planning considerations being
acceptable, in accordance with the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with the
existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2011) notes the importance
of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions.'

Policies BE13 and BE15 of the UDP seek to ensure that development harmonises with the
character of the surrounding properties and street scene, and in particular the scale, form,
architectural composition and proportions of the original building. Policy BE19 further
requires that development should complement and improve the amenity of the residential
area. With specific reference to the site's location within the Harefield Village Conservation
Area, Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) states that new development will be expected to preserve or
enhance those features which contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities.
This is supported by Policy 7.4 of the London Plan (2016) which requires developments to
have regard to local character.

Olivia Gardens is a small modern cul-de-sac development off Northwood Road,
comprising of modest sized detached houses, each situated on proportionately sized plots.
It is accessed via a private gated road. The site is located in the corner of the cul-de-sac
and is characterised by mature trees. A significant mature protected oak tree is sited
adjacent to the site with its canopy extending over the site. 

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The Conservation Officer has commented that the scheme exceeds the height and general
scale considerations under HDAS guidelines and seeks amendment.

Properties 1-3 Olivia Gardens are all of a similar design style of two storeys with a ridge
line running parallel to the road and gable ends to the side and all have been extended in
some form. No 4 is set back in the other corner of the cul-de-sac behind no. 3 and appears
slightly smaller with a hipped roof detail.

The HDAS - Residential Extensions indicates that such buildings will only be permitted if
the outbuilding is only used for normal domestic uses related to the residential use of the
main house. Paragraph 9.4 states that these uses include parking of cars, storage of
possessions, use as a children's play room, green house, garden shed, gym, summer
house and hobby room provided they are ancillary to the use of the main house. The
games room at ground floor has a toilet/shower. The upper floor would be used as an
office. The existing property is quite large and the applicant has not included information
why such a large outbuilding is required for purposes ancillary to the main dwelling. The
uses are not those as set out in the HDAS. The applicant has not clarified whether the
games room is for children or general use, for instance. The supporting letter does refer to
a previous permission for two outbuildings, one of which has been built (garage) and
explains that the applicant wishes to make the second building slightly larger and
incorporate a home office at first floor.

Paragraph 9.3 states that a ridged roof outbuilding should be no more than 4 metres high.

The footprint of the outbuilding is approximately 48 square metres. The building would be
5.5 metres high, which is substantially higher than set out in the HDAS. Whilst there are no
fundamental objections to an outbuilding the development appears excessive for the site. It
will materially reduce the gap between buildings where it will appear as a large bulky
structure which is not typical of ancillary outbuildings in the vicinity.  Whilst other
outbuildings characteristically have flat roofs, there are a variety of designs and, in this
case, it is considered that the proposal would not be in keeping with the character or
appearance of the surrounding area and the proposed outbuilding, by reason of bulk and
scale and would not be appropriate in terms of the visual amenities of the surrounding
residential area and would not be in accordance with policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the
UDP and guidance within the HDAS: Residential Extensions SPD.

The development is sited between the existing house and a garage at the property. No
neighbours would be directly impacted. The proposal would not be an unneighbourly form
of development and complies with the requirements of Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Concern has been raised by neighbours over the potential impact of the proposal on the
health and long term protection of the mature Oak tree adjacent to the site. The application
is supported by an Arboricultural Report which seeks to demonstrate that, should suitable
protective measures be employed, the tree would not be negatively impacted upon by the
development.

The Trees and Landscape Officer raises no objections to the scheme, subject to
recommended conditions.

The proposal does not increase the number of bedrooms at the site or result in the loss of
parking or generate traffic in its own right. As such, the outbuilding would not generate

Page 24



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal by reason of it's siting, size and scale represents a cramped and obtrusive
form of development which would detract from the open character of the street scene,
thus failing to preserve the character and appearance of the Harefield Village Conservation
Area, contrary to Policies BE4 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's HDAS: 'Residential Extensions'.

1

1

2

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from the 'Saved' UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service. The submitted application form
highlights that the applicant failed to engage in pre-application discussions.

RECOMMENDATION6.

additional traffic.

However, the proposal is considered to result in a cramped and excessive form of
development, resulting in the loss of an undeveloped gap and views through existing
properties, resulting in a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site and the
surrounding Conservation Area. It is therefore recommended for refusal.

Standard Informatives 

1           The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14

(prohibition of discrimination).

Page 25



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Cris Lancaster 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H12

H4

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 7.2

HDAS-EXT

LDF-AH

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Mix of housing units

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) An inclusive environment

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

2

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 26



12b
BURBERY CLOSE

4

1

3

11
 1

2
1
3 1

0

6

1

P
in

es

H
ig

h

3

2

1

19

S
urgery

D
e
v
a
ri

s

41

4

1a

 Cottage

In
ve

re
sk

27

C
h
ey

h
am

38

14a

C
o
tt
ag

e

M
u
lla

co
tt

O
ak

le
ig

h

15

36

W
IC

K
H

A
M

 C
L
O

S
E

34

34a

FA
L
L
O

W
F
IE

L
D

 C
L

O
LIV

IA
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

12

40

4

C
o
tt

a
g
e

B
ro

c
k
le

y

Garage

9

14

38
36a

11

1

1

12a

1

4

H
e
a
c
h
a
m

Gra
nge

E
l S

o
la

n
a

a

3

Litt
le

1
2

R
h

o
d
e
s

M
ar

st
o
n

BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH

E
v
e
n
le

y

1

5

M
IK

A
D

O
 C

L
O

S
E

ESS

Ta
lb

o
t

D
on

ni
ng

to
n 

C
ot

ta
ge

19

20

H
ig

h
 V

ie
w

L
E

Y
S

 C
L
O

S
E

1

50

9
7

5

Workhouse
The Old

1

D
ra

ke
s

11

1

20

1
4

88.1m

52

Cottage
Trumper's

1
1

C
o
tt
ag

e

2

22

2

1

H
A

M
B

L
E

T
O

N
 C

L
O

S
E

D
A

IR
Y

 F
A

R
M

 L
A

N
E

Little
Hammonds

3

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

3 Olivia Gardens

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4672/APP/2017/765

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 

100019283 Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3 ALBANY CLOSE ICKENHAM

Conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include 1 x front and 3 x rear
dormers and conversion of roof from hip to gable end with a Juliette Balcony.

22/03/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 72581/APP/2017/1057

Drawing Nos: Location Plan

3841/01 B

3841/02 B

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application relates to a detached bungalow located in a corner plot on the Southern
side of Albany Close, a cul de sac. The property is set beneath a hipped roof with a
projecting front gable feature over the integrated garage on the Western side and the
property currently benefits from a conservatory on the Eastern side. There is a reasonable
sized front garden laid to hardstanding and can provide parking for at least two cars and
there is also private garden space to the side and rear of the property.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance and comprises 5 dwellings.
The property at 1 Albany Close is a two storey property but all other units on Albany Close
are single storey. Nos. 2, 3 and 5 are of a similar design however no 4 is more T shaped,
finished with gabled ends.

The application site lies within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area and the 'Developed
Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012).

The application seeks planning permission for the conversion of the roofspace to habitable
use forming two additional bedrooms, a bathroom and storage area. This includes the
conversion of both side hips to gable ends with a Juliette Balcony on the Eastern side
elevation and the installation of 1 x front and 3 x rear dormer windows.

72581/APP/2017/459

72581/APP/2017/542

3 Albany Close Ickenham

3 Albany Close Ickenham

Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer (Application for a Certificate of

Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

27-02-2017Decision Date: Refused

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

22/03/2017Date Application Valid:

Appeal:

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

72581/APP/2017/542 - Conversion of attached garage to habitable use (approved)
72581/APP/2017/459 CLD - Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear
dormer (refused)

The previous CLD application was refused as the property lies within the Conservation
Area.

Not applicable 26th April 2017

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 27th April 20172.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 18 April 2017. A site
notice was also erected on the lamp post opposite expiring on 27 April 2017. 

There were 5 responses received raising the following issues:
- Loss of light from gable end.
- Loss of privacy to dining room and garden, overlooking.
- Overdevelopment with 3 additional bedrooms with the conversion of the garage.
- Insufficient parking provision.
- Out of keeping with the character of the area.

A petition (10 signatures) against the proposal was also submitted.

The Ward Member has also raised concerns and in addition to the issues raised above,
has advised that there is a real need for single storey dwellings characterised by this
location that enables the older person and disabled both young and old to remain in their
own properties. A loss of this type of dwelling impacts on the social housing and long term
wellbeing of our residents but recognises that this is not a planning issue but planning
decisions have an impact on social housing. He has therefore requested the proposal be
called in for a committee decision.

Ickenham Residents Association - No response.

Ickenham Conservation Area Panel - No response.

Conservation and Urban Design - The proposed conversion of the roof from hip to gable
would dramatically alter the character and appearance of the existing modest bungalow.
The roof would be a detrimentally over dominant element adjacent to no. 4's very low ridge
height within the small cul-de-sac. It would detract from the character and appearance of
the defined street scene and would enclose the gap between no. 3 and 4, which currently
exists due to the hipped roof form. The proposed alteration of the roof form would be
considered in principle unacceptable.

Conversion of attached garage to habitable use

18-04-2017Decision Date: Approved

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal:

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

LPP 3.5

NPPF

HDAS-EXT

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Part 2 Policies:

Side facing fenestrations would need to be obscure glazed, the proposed Juliette balcony
at first floor would not be considered an appropriate element and would need to be omitted
from the proposal.

The existing roofscape within the cul-de-sac is unaltered, providing a unique, uniform street
scene. The proposed front dormer would be considered in principle unacceptable. Whilst
the principle of a rear former could be considered, the proposed 3 box style dormer would
be considered unacceptable. They would needs to remain subservient and in keeping with
the character and appearance of the existing property. Taking into account the objection to
the roof form alteration the number of dormers and size of the dormers would need to be
substantially reduced and revised. It is recommended that eyebrow style dormers are
considered as these would sit more comfortably within the shape and size of the roof and
would appear more subservient to the character and appearance of the bungalow.

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual
amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring

Page 31



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

dwellings and the availability of parking.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policies BE4, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) states that the layout and appearance of new development should
"harmonise with the existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2012)
notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that
'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions.' Policy BE4 reflects the relevant legal duties.

The Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document, the Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions (December 2008) sets out the design
criteria including external dimensions by which proposals are assessed with the general
aim of ensuring that these are subordinate to the original building.

The proposal includes alterations to the roof to change the side hipped roof form to create
gable ends, including a Juliette balcony in the Eastern gable. It also includes a front dormer
window and 3 rear dormer windows. It is noted that there are some slight inconsistencies
between the submitted plans, including the omission of the front dormer window from the
side elevations and slight variations in measurements between floor plans and elevations.
However notwithstanding this, the front dormer has an approximate size of 1.8 m in height,
2.2 m in width and 1.6 m in depth, set slightly off from centre on the front elevation above
the front door. It is set down 0.35 m from the ridge and 0.8 m above the eaves. The rear
dormers are evenly spaced along the roof and measure approximately 1.9 m in height, 2.1
m in width and 1.6 m in depth.

HDAS-EXT guidance paragraph 7.7, states that a dormer should be set in the centre of the
roof face, below the main ridge by at least 0.3 m and 0.5 m above the eaves. HDAS also
advises conversions from hip to gable ends will usually be refused as this would unbalance
the overall appearance of the house; however assessments will have due regard for the
impact of the extension on the street scene and the character of the property. 

Although in principle the proposed dormer windows would comply with HDAS guidance, the
Conservation Officer has raised serious concerns over the proposed alterations. The
bungalow is situated within a small infill cul-de-sac with other bungalows designed in a
similar manner. The conversion of the roof from a hip to a gable would dramatically alter
the character and appearance of the modest bungalow. It would be a detrimentally over
dominant element adjacent to no. 4's very low roof line and would enclose the gap feature
between the two properties to the detriment of the character and appearance of the defined
street scene. The proposed front dormer would be an alien feature within the cul-de-sac
and whilst in principle a rear dormer may be acceptable, the size and number of proposed
box dormers to the rear would add to the overall bulk of the property and detract from the
character and appearance of the modest bungalow and the wider Conservation Area.  As
such it is considered that the proposal fails to comply with the requirements of Policies
BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Section 7.0 of HDAS Residential Extensions. 

Policy BE20 states that buildings should be laid out to allow adequate daylight to penetrate
and amenities of existing houses safeguarded. The dwelling occupies a corner position in

Page 32



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the cul de sac facing down the road and level with the adjacent property no. 4.  Given the
relationship to the adjacent property it is not considered that the proposed roof alterations
would significantly impact on the amenity, by virtue of loss of light, of the occupiers of that
dwelling. 2 Albany Close is situated to the front of the application site and set at right angles
to the application site, with a distance of approximately 7 m between the front wall of no. 3
and the side wall of no.2. Concerns have been raised with regard to the potential loss of
light to the neighbouring property as a result of the hip to gable alteration, particularly to the
side facing dining room window. It is not clear if this is the only window serving this room or
if this is a secondary window. However it is noted that the rear of the neighbouring property
projects approximately 3 m beyond the rear elevation of the application site and the dining
room window faces the end of the neighbouring house. Therefore whilst the hip to gable
would be more visible it is not considered that the proposed alteration would result in a
significant loss of light or be overbearing to this property. The proposed dormer windows
are at a sufficient distance set within the roofslope so as not to significantly impact on the
amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.  As such, the proposal complies with Policies BE20
and BE21 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Policy BE24 states that the proposal should protect the privacy of the occupiers and their
neighbours. Paragraph 4.12 of HDAS guidance also advises that where habitable room
windows face each other, a minimum 21 m distance is required to safeguard privacy. This
also applies to an area of private amenity space or patio, normally taken to be the 3 m
depth of rear garden immediately adjoining the rear elevation of a residential property. 

The proposed dormer windows will face the front and rear of the property, with the
proposed Juliette balcony facing the side garden. In order to protect the privacy of the
neighbouring properties side windows would normally be expected to the obscure glazed
and fixed shut below 1.8 m and as such the Juliette balcony window would be
unacceptable. However given the orientation of the property, this window would face the
side garden of the application site and the end of the rear gardens of the properties fronting
Halford Road beyond. Having regard to a 45 degree splay from the centre of this window, it
is noted that the nearest property to intersect would be 34 Halford Road which is situated
approximately 25 m away. It is noted that concerns have been raised by the occupiers of
no.2, however the 45 degree line of sight transects the end corner of their rear garden and
given the oblique nature of the angle of view to the rear of their property is not considered to
result in a significant loss of privacy to 2 Albany Close. To the rear the proposed dormer
windows would be approximately 23 m from the nearest property at 38 Halford Road. To
the front the proposed dormer window would face the roofslope of no. 2 Albany Close and
their front garden area. It is noted that taking a 45 degree line of sight from this window
would result in overlooking to the side dining room window, within 12m and as such would
result in an unacceptable loss of privacy to that dwelling. However as this would serve a
landing area this could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below 1.8 m if
all other aspects of the proposal were acceptable. As such, the proposal would be in
compliance with Policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms and those altered by the proposals
would maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan.

Paragraph 5.13 of Residential Extensions. HDAS: Residential Extensions requires
sufficient garden space to be retained as a consequence of an extension. The property

Page 33



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The roof alterations and extensions, by reason of the hip to gable end roof design and the
size, scale and design of the front and rear dormer windows, would fail to harmonise with
the architectural composition, character and appearance of the original dwelling and would
be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider Ickenham Village
Conservation Area. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policy BE1 and HE1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE4,
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Extensions.

1

1

2

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from the 'Saved' UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service.

RECOMMENDATION6.

benefits from a good sized rear garden and adequate garden space would be retained.

There is no impact on parking provision as a result of this proposal.

Standard Informatives 

1           The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14

(prohibition of discrimination).

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM14

BE4

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

LPP 3.5

NPPF

HDAS-EXT

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

2

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 35



33

C
O

U
R

T
 R

O
A

D

33a

26

30

19

22

38.1m

15

26

31

4
8

18

V
Y

N
E

THE CHASE

29

A
L

B
A

N
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

27

1

39

5

15

56

39.6m

42

53

35

38.7m

37

42

40SWAKELEYS DRIVE

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

3 Albany Close

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

72581/APP/2017/1057

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 36



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

53-55 THE BROADWAY JOEL STREET NORTHWOOD 

Change of use of the 1st and 2nd floors to a 24 hour gym (Class D2).

24/10/2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 5564/APP/2016/3908

Drawing Nos: Planning, Design and Access Statement Northwood Hills 090916 D2 1st-
2nd
FLU.387.5.02
FLU.387.5.04
FLU.387.5.06
FLU.387.5.03
FLU.387.5.07
FLU.387.5.05
FLU.387.5.08
FLU.387.5.10
FLU.387.5.12
FLU.387.5.09
FLU.387.5.13
FLU.387.5.11
FLU.387.5.01
Environmental Noise Assessment 103305.ph.Issue3

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the upper floors from offices (Use
Class B1a) to a 24 hour gym (Use Class D2). With regards to land use matters, it is
considered that the proposed town centre location is appropriate, that the use will
positively contribute to the creation of healthy, liveable and sustainable neighbourhoods
and the use would complement adjoining town centres uses.There are no external
modifications proposed, therefore the development would have no impact on the visual
amenity of the area. Conditions are proposed which would satisfactorily mitigate the
generation of noise from the proposed 24 hour gymnasium use, and ensure that there is
no disturbance to the rest periods of neighbouring occupiers. The site is located in close
proximity to modes of public transport and 16 no. car parking spaces are available. It is
therefore considered the proposal would not result in harm to the local highway network.
The application is therefore recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HH-T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

24/10/2016Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 8

Page 37



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM1

COM5

COM12

NONSC

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

Use Within Same Use Class

Non Standard Condition

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans:
FLU.387.5.08 Proposed Basement Plan
FLU.387.5.10 Proposed First Floor Plan
FLU.387.5.12 Proposed Front Elevation
FLU.387.5.09 Proposed Ground Floor Plan
FLU.387.5.13 Proposed Rear Elevation
FLU.387.5.11 Proposed Second Floor Plan

hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13/BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:
Planning, Design and Access Statement Northwood Hills 090916 D2 1st-2nd
Environmental Noise Assessment 103305.ph.Issue3

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies contained within
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The premises shall be used for a gym and for no other purpose (including any other
purpose in Class D2) of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order 1987(as amended).

REASON
To allow the Local Planning Authority to consider the amenity, highways and other impacts
of any potential alternative use of the site.

The 24 hour gym use allowed by this permission shall take place subject to the following
restrictions:

a) no classes or events are to take place within the hours of 22:00 - 08:00 Mondays -
Sundays
b) the gym shall be available to members only within the hours of 20:00 - 08:00 Mondays -
Sundays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

2

3

4

5

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

COM16

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Scheme for site noise control

No development shall take place until full particulars of the external and internal security
measures including but not restricted to CCTV and controlled entry system have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

The security measures thus approved shall be implemented prior to occupation of the first
floor of the development and retained in perpetuity.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

No development shall take place until a Facility Management Plan has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

The Management Plan shall include but is not restricted to:
- safety and security measures;
- membership criteria and policies;
- personnel and customer code of conduct (this should include details of how potential
customer noise, including the unreasonable dropping of free weights or resistance
weights, is to be controlled);
- minimum staffing levels; and
- emergency procedures.

The gym use shall not take place otherwise than in accordance with the Facility
Management Plan thus approved.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

No access or egress is permitted otherwise than as means of escape in the event of
emergency or for servicing via the doors to the car park on Ferndown between 22:00 -
07:30.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

The development shall not commence until details of sound insulation measures,
administrative measures and limitation measures to be implemented are agreed in writing.
Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the
approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6

7

8

9

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

B24

NONSC

H8

A21

H14

Amplified Noise

Non Standard Condition

Surfacing and marking out of access/parking/servicing areas

Parking for Wheelchair Disabled People

Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

No music and/or other amplified sound shall be audible at the boundary of any residential
premises either attached to or in the vicinity of the premises to which this application
refers.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

Notwithstanding the details of sound insulation measures, administrative measures and
limitation measures agreed in writing, for the first 12 months of operation, a sound level
monitor shall be installed to measure sound levels within the premises. During the 12
month period any abnormal noise levels shall be investigated by the centre management
and corrective measures documented. Details of the sound levels, including management
actions to address abnormal noise levels, shall be recorded on a monthly basis and made
available to the local planning authority at request. 

REASON
To safeguard the amenities of adjoining residential occupiers in accordance with Policies
OE1, OE3 and S6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

The development shall not be occupied until the 16 parking spaces shown on the
approved plans have been drained, surfaced and marked out in accordance with details to
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter these
areas shall be permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON
To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid out
on site in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

2no. of the parking spaces (with dimensions of 4.8m x 3.6m to allow for wheelchair
transfer to and from the side of car) shall be reserved exclusively for people using
wheelchairs and clearly marked with the Universal Wheelchair Symbol both vertically and
horizontally.  Such parking spaces shall be sited in close proximity to the nearest
accessible building entrance which shall be clearly signposted and dropped kerbs
provided from the car park to the pedestrian area.  These parking spaces shall be
provided prior to the occupation of the development in accordance with the Council's
adopted car parking standards and details to be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.  Thereafter, these facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that people in wheelchairs are provided with adequate car parking and
convenient access to building entrances.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of covered
and secure storage for 60 cycles for users of and visitors to the development have been

10

11

12

13

14

Page 40



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DIS2 Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the
development shall not be occupied or brought into use until the approved cycling facilities
have been implemented in accordance with the approved plan, with the facilities being
permanently retained for use by cyclists using the facility.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door width and lobby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved facilities should be
provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policy/ies AM13/R16 [refer to the relevant policy/ies] of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (2016)
Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

15

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7

AM13

AM14

BE13

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Page 41



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the east side of The Broadway, Joel Street, immediately
to the north of Northwood Hills Tube Station. A mainly residential street, Ferndown, runs
along the back of the Broadway parade.  The site consists of a mid 1980's red brick three
storey building with basement/lower ground level. A public house occupies the ground level
from Joel Street, which is listed as an Asset of Community Value (ACV). The upper floor
levels were previously used as offices, but are currently vacant. The upper floors are not
affected by the ACV designation. There are significant differences in ground levels between
the front and rear of the site with Ferndown approximately 3m lower than Joel Street. The
site includes undercroft parking at lower ground floor level with more parking to the rear of
the main building with access from Ferndown. The existing building is neither listed nor
located within a conservation area. The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 3 (Moderate).

The site is located within the Northwood Hills Town Centre and is a designated Secondary
Shopping Area. The Broadway is characterised by mainly three storey terrace properties
with commercial/retail at ground floor level. Ferndown to the rear of the site is much more
residential in nature and comprises mainly two storey semi detached and terrace
residential properties. To the south, the Metropolitan line abuts the site and beyond, there
are three and four storey mixed use buildings on Joel Street, but the streets that branch off
either side of the main road are characterised by mainly two storey residential properties.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal seeks to change the use of the first and second floors from offices (Use
Class B1a) to a 24 hour gym (Use Class D2).

5564/APP/2015/3770

5564/APP/2016/3439

53-55 The Broadway Joel Street Northwood 

The William Jolle Ph, 53 The Broadway Joel Street Northwood 

Change of Use of first and second floor from offices (Use Class B1) to 6 x 1-bed and 4 x 2-bed

flats (Prior Approval)

Change of use of ground floor to Class D1 (Doctor or Dentist Practice) and installation of a

03-12-2015Decision: PRN

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

OE1

LDF-AH

AM15

AM2

R2

R3

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Provision of recreation, entertainment and leisure facilities in Town
Centres
Indoor sports, leisure and entertainment facilities

Page 42



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

5564/APP/2016/3468 (11/01/2017)  WITHDRAWN  Change of use of ground floor to Class
A1 and installation of a replacement shopfront. 

5564/APP/2016/3469 (11/01/2017) WITHDRAWN Change of use of 1st and 2nd Floors to
Class D1 (dentist or doctors).

5564/APP/2015/3770 (03/12/2015) PRIOR APPROVAL Change of Use of first and second
floor from offices (Use Class B1) to 6 x 1-bed and 4 x 2-bed flats.

There have been several applications at the site in the recent past, this application differs to
the previous application as this application applies to the change of use of the first and
second floors.

11924/APP/2015/2299 Concerned a 24 hour gym approved at 50 Windmill Hill, Ruislip.
This is considered to have very similar site characteristics to the proposed site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.BE1

PT1.EM5

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Sport and Leisure

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

AM13

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people with
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 

Part 2 Policies:

5564/APP/2016/3468

5564/APP/2016/3469

The William Jolle Ph, 53 The Broadway Joel Street Northwood 

53-55 The Broadway Joel Street Northwood 

replacement shopfront

Change of use of ground floor to Class A1 and installation of a replacement shopfront

Change of use of 1st and 2nd Floors to Class D1 (dentist or doctors).

10-01-2017

10-01-2017

10-01-2017

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Withdrawn

Withdrawn

Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM14

BE13

OE1

LDF-AH

AM15

AM2

R2

R3

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Provision of recreation, entertainment and leisure facilities in Town Centres

Indoor sports, leisure and entertainment facilities

Not applicable24th November 2016

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Neighbouring residents were consulted on the application between 1 November 2016 and 22
November 2016. 

18 residents were consulted on the application and 2 objections and 1 petition was received. 

I object in relation to the impact on parking within the residential roads of Briarwood Drive, Ferndown
and Oakdale Avenue and also on Joel Street. Supporting information shows that the second floor of
this development will contain some 65 items of Gym equipment and that there will be 10 full time
plus 4 part time employees. Therefore this building could be occupied at anytime by up to 80 or
more people (customers and employees). The building itself has only 10 parking spaces which may
be for employees, and so raises the issue of customer parking with the available options being the
streets I have mentioned above. The residential streets mentioned already are subject to commuter
parking for Northwood Hills Station particularly from Monday to Friday from 7am to 7pm. This
additional parking of gym customers will occur beyond these commuter times and also into
Saturday and Sundays depending on the opening hours of the Gym. On the latter I also note there is
no proposal given on the opening hours and I would express further objection if these were beyond
11pm at night on weekdays and included Sundays.

NORTHWOOD HILLS RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

Object to the planning application for the following reasons:

A) On the 3 December 2015 an application to change the use of the 1st and second floors from
Offices (Class B1) to 6 x 1 bed and 4 x2 bed flats under the prior Approval rules was confirmed by

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS

The proposals would preserve current access arrangements. As the proposed use of the site does
not entail any specific access requirements, no comments are therefore raised with reference to
vehicular access. 

It is not considered that trip generation would increase significantly as a result of the proposed
change of use. Car trips generated by the proposed use are therefore unlikely to have a severe
impact on existing traffic operations in the surrounding road network.

Car parking spaces need to be clearly marked on the submitted plans, both in the under croft and
courtyard area. 10% of the total parking spaces need to be designed for use by blue badge holders.

The applicant needs to justify that the number of provided parking spaces is adequate to meet the
parking demand generated by the proposed development, though an analysis of the staff levels and
the number of customers that are expected to travel by private transport. 

London Borough of Hillingdon Reference 5564/APP/2015/3770.

Recent comments made by Mayor Khan indicated that the GLA wish to see surplus Commercial
Space converted into residential accommodation rather than the other way around.

B) Conversion to Class D1 or Class D2 will have severe impacts on parking in Joel Steet, Ferndown
and other surrounding roads in an area already blighted with major parking issues.  These issues
are so severe that the Council  (Please refer to the Cabinet Member for Transport) is currently
considering the introduction of Residents only Parking zones. In the area.  There is insufficient
available parking to support either the D1 or D2 proposal.

C) Northwood Hills an official PTAL rating of 2 which is poor.

D) The increased vehicular traffic will undoubtedly have a major impact on residential neighbours, in
particularly noise from a Gym if the premises are to remain open after 18:00 Monday to Friday and at
weekends.  Residential flats adjoin to the 1st and second floors.

E) The Hillingdon Local Plan (Development Management Policies) section 8.12 states "the Council
will not support development which will unacceptably contribute to traffic movements, deleteriously
impact on the highways network or road user safety (including pedestrian), or affect residential
amenity including noise, congestion or inadequate parking provision".  These applications fail this
test and should therefore be declined.

F) NHRA deem applications 5564/APP/2016/3469 and 5564/APP/2016/3098 multiple and as such
suggest that the Council is entitled to reject these under section 70c of The Town and Country
Planning Act (as amended).

PETITION

A petition with 20 signatures was received requesting that the application should be decided by the
planning committee. 

LUL

London Underground Infrastructure Protection made no comment to make on this planning
application.

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Strategic Objective 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (November 2012) seeks to
improve access to local services and facilities, including health,  local shopping,
community, cultural, sport and leisure facilities, especially for those without a car and for
those in more remote parts of the borough through well planned routes and integrated
public transport.

The National Planning Policy Framework, policies 3.16 and 4.7 of the London Plan seek to

The parking spaces within the site boundary shall be used for the sole use of staff and customers of
the proposed facility and for no other purpose for the duration of the development. This requirement
needs to be secured through an appropriate condition on the planning permission.

The applicant needs to provide 1 secure bicycle storage space per 15sqm of floor space. Details of
the type, location and number of the proposed bicycle storage spaces shall be shown on the
submitted drawings.

The submitted Transport Statement  in support of the proposals estimates that the proposed gym
would generate some 2 - 4 trips during AM and PM peaks. The document is rather incomplete and
does not provide an accurate assessment of the proposals however, even if we multiplied the
estimated figures by a factor of 4, the number of hourly trips generated by the gym would be below
the stated parking provision (16 vehicles).

It should be noted that the application site is very close to a London Underground station and within
short distance of local buses. Also, this type of facilities tends to attract local residents within walking
distance from the site.

Two conditions are proposed:

-          That at least 16 parking spaces be provided and a detailed car park layout be provided with all
spaces clearly marked (at least 2 suitable for blue badge holders);

-           Storage for at least 60 bicycles should be provided; these could include both short and long
term storage.

The first conditions will ensure that sufficient parking space is provided; the second will further
reduce the reliance on private cars for the future gym customers, as these are likely to be fit,
relatively and health conscious people, who are more likely to consider bicycles as a means of
transport.

For all the reasons stated above, I feel that the proposed development will not have a severe impact
on the local highway network.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

The potential noise from this type of development is an issue. For instance Music noise will need to
be controlled as will potential impact noise from equipment or exercise classes. This will require
improved sound insulation and other measures to control the potential noise. 

(Officer Comment: It is considered that through appropriately worded conditions all of the above
concerns could be addressed).

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 46



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

locate gyms within town centre and edge of town centre locations within easy reach by
walking, cycling and public transport. This is because town centre and edge of town centre
locations are most accessible but also because gyms are considered a use which through
generation of activity and footfall can contribute to the vitality and viability of the borough's
town centres and commercial areas.

Map 5.3 refers to Northwood Hills as a Minor Centre and Policy EM5 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 1 seeks to direct appropriate use to town centres. 

Policy R2 of the Local Plan: Part 2 (November 2012) seeks to enhance the vitality of the
town centre and encourages the provision recreation and leisure facilities in such locations.

Policy R3 of the Local Plan:  Part 2 (November 2012) considers sports and leisure facilities
appropriate provided they cater for the needs of of people living within a 1.6km radius of the
site, are accessible by public transport and will not be detrimental to the amenity of the
surrounding area. 

It is considered the a gym (Use Class D2) would be an appropriate use within the town
centre. The site is located conveniently in the centre of Northwood Hills and is easily
accessible by public transport. The applicant has submitted a Needs Assessment setting
out that there is a demand for the proposed gym in this location.  Therefore, the principle of
the proposal accords with the local and national planning policies.

Not applicable to this proposal.

No external alterations are proposed as part of the application, this is not applicable to this
proposal.

Not applicable to this proposal.

Not applicable to this proposal.

No external alterations are proposed as part of the application, as such the application
would not result in harm to the street scene or the appearance of the area.

The National Planning Policy Framework identifies sustainable development as the main
purpose of the planning system and specifies three main dimensions: the economic, social
and environmental. These roles are mutually dependant and should not be undertaken in
isolation. Of particular relevance to the protection of amenity as part of sustainable
development are Paragraphs 123 and 125 of the NPPF which require planning to: 

· avoid adverse impacts on health and quality of life which could arise from noise;
· mitigate and reduce other amenity impacts, including through the use of conditions; and
· limit the impact of light pollution on local amenity.

Policy 3.2 of the London Plan acknowledges the impact of the environment on health of the
population and requires new developments to be designed, constructed and managed in
ways that improve health and promote healthy lifestyles. Policy 7.3 aims to ensure creation
of safe and secure environments where crime and disorder and the fear of crime do not
undermine quality of life. This policy also acknowledges that daytime and managed night

Page 47



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

time uses can positively contribute to safety of an area through creation of a level of natural
surveillance resulting from the activity generated in and around the site. 

Policies OE1, OE3 and S6 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies
(November 2012) require a consideration of potential changes of use on the amenity
enjoyed by adjoining and neighbouring residential properties. There is the potential of noise
from the proposed use on neighbouring residents as a number of the buildings within the
Broadway include residential accommodation on the floors above. Nevertheless, the site is
located within the town centre and Northwood Hills and the Metropolitan Line station is
located to the south of the site and therefore moderate footfall and is expected during peak
hours and less so overnight. To the rear of the site Ferndown is residential in character.
The applicant has supplied information noting that 5% of visitors would visit the gym
overnight between 11pm and 6am. The noise assessment has considered the impact of
noise generated by amplified music, classes and equipment on the adjoining properties
both during the day and at night. EPU has considered the noise assessment and are
satisfied that the proposed sound proofing is sufficient to mitigate against the proposal
noise impact of the proposal on neighbouring residential units. Several conditions are
attached including noise mitigation and sound insulation measures, including details of how
potential customer noise, such a the unreasonable dropping of free weights or resistance
weights, is to be controlled. Conditions are also proposed for the control of classes and
events, control of amplified music and a restriction on the comings and goings from the
entrance at Ferndown. Finally a condition is proposed that, for the first 12 months of
operation, a sound level monitor shall be installed to measure sound levels within the
premises. During the 12 month period any abnormal noise levels shall be investigated by
the centre management and corrective measures documented. Details of the sound levels,
including management actions to address abnormal noise levels, shall be recorded on a
monthly basis and made available to the local planning authority at request. 

It is noted that safety and security measures are likely to significantly reduce the likelihood
and/or intensity of nuisance caused by people arriving or leaving the premises. The
proposal is expected to incorporate a number of security features including a secure entry
system utilising secure entry pods and requiring personal identification numbers, staffing
and extensive CCTV coverage. It is expected that, between the hours of 20:00 and 8:00 the
gym will be accessible only to members, this would be controlled by way of a condition.

In order to reduce any possibility of antisocial behaviour and other adverse amenity impacts
resulting from uncontrolled or unsupervised access a bespoke Facility Management Plan
will be secured by condition and retained in perpetuity. The Facility Management Plan shall
detail all safety and security measures, membership policies, personnel and customer
code of conduct, minimum night-time staffing, management and emergency procedures.
This is considered necessary to prevent adverse amenity and safety impacts resulting
from 24 hour operation. 

The D2 'Assembly and Leisure' Use Class, among others, allows the following uses:
Cinemas, Dance and Concert Halls, Sport Halls, Bingo Halls, Casinos and other Leisure
Uses such as conferencing and banqueting suites. The amenity and highways impact of
most of the other uses within the D2 Use Class is considered to be disproportionately
higher than that of a gym. It is therefore considered necessary to impose a condition
restricting the use under this application to a gym and no other use within the D2 Use
Class.

As such, with regards to disruption from comings and goings, it is considered that, subject

Page 48



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

to the above conditions,the use will not result in disruption to the amenity of adjoining
residential occupiers.

Not applicable to this proposal.

Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) require development proposals to be assessed against their traffic
generation and the availability of public transport and the capacity and functions of principal
roads. Policy AM9 seeks to ensure that adequate provision for cyclists is made in
development proposals. Policies AM14 and AM15 require parking to be provided in
accordance with standards, including provision for disabled persons.

16 car parking spaces are available for users of the premise to the rear of the site which is
accessed via Ferndown. The site is located next to a train station and is served by several
bus routes. Concerns raised by residents within the local area have duly been considered
by Officers. The Highways Officer considers that the proposal would not result in an
detrimental impact to the local highway network due to its proximity to public transport
nodes. The likely traffic impact would be comparable to the existing use of the car park and
it is not anticipated that the proposed use would result in adverse impact to the local
highway network.  A condition is included which seeks details of cycle parking and a further
conditions require the applicant to clearly mark the car parking spaces and to secure 2 no.
disabled car parking bays.

No external changes are proposed. The first and second floors of the building, currently
vacant office accommodation will be converted to use as a gymnasium of approximately
840 sqm. The ground floor access from Joel Street/Ferndown and lower ground floor
access to the parking level will be as existing. The existing lift access will be retained. Level
access is provided to the lifts.

Any signage required will be the subject of a separate application for advert consent.

Conditions are recommended to ensure the internal layout is fully wheelchair accessible.

Not applicable to this proposal.

Not applicable to this proposal.

As the proposal is for a change of use, the waste management arrangements are to
remain as existing.

Not applicable to this proposal.

Not applicable to this proposal.

See section 7.08 of this report.

The objections relating to car parking have been considered by the Highways Officer and
appropriate conditions have been secured to mitigate against the impact of the proposal on

Page 49



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

the local highways network.

An objector raised the point about declining the determination of an application under
Section 70c of the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended). Whilst a local planning
authority can decline to determine a similar application if there has been no significant
change in a re-submitted application, in this case,there were no grounds on which the
Council could decline to determine this application, this scheme differs from the previous
cases which have been lodged at the site.

It is not considered that Planning Obligations would be required for this proposal.

Not applicable to this proposal.

No other issues.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of

Page 50



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None

10. CONCLUSION

The development seeks the the change of use of the upper floors from offices (Class B1a)
to a 24 hour gym (Class D2). There are no external modification proposed, as such the
development would have limited impact on the visual amenity of the area. Subject to the
addition of conditions, the scale, intensity and location of the proposed 24 hour gymnasium
use are such that the gymnasium use would not result in the generation of unacceptable
noise and disturbance on neighbouring residential occupiers. 

The site is located in close proximity to modes of public transport and 16no. car parking
spaces would be made available and clearly marked for users of the gym facilities. It is
therefore considered the proposal would not result in harm to the local highway network
and approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Zenab Haji-Ismail 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 51



1
1

Argyle

Shelter

Shelter

SL

2
1

21

2
0

12
11

Hawthorne Court

1
1

14
13

1
2

1
78

3

3
8

3
9

2

2

1
09

1

1
6

2
1

7
6

1
8

21

1
9

22
15 14

1
5

Sta
Sub
El

1
 to

 5

GraceCourt

L
y

n
x

 H
o

u
s

e

4241

Clinic

Post

5
0

4

4
9

4
7

4
5

16 to 20

8 to 12

1 to
 5

Fairfield

70.1m

4
0

 t
o

 4
9

Ways
West

8
7

7
6

55

6
6

8
6

O
A

K
D

A
L

E
 A

V
E

N

Hotel
Hills

Northwood

Church

WINDSOR CLOSE

PC

2

9
1

8
9

R
y

e
fi

e
ld

 C
o

u
rt

PO
LB

Bank

56

27

6
5

7
7

SL

4
1

K
in

g

6
4

6
1

MP 13

5
1

2
9

2
7

5
3

The

1
4

 t
o

 2
0

3
4

3
6

71.6m

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

2
 to

 1
2

69.2m

22

J
O

E
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Rail Lodge

42

BRIARWOOD DRIVE

SL

1 to 5

1
3

73

61

3
6

30

37

2
8

91

67

RYEFIELD

Works
46

28

FERNDOW
N

Northwood Hills Station (LU)

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

53-55 The Broadway

Joel Street

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

5564/APP/2016/3908

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 52



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

50 RODNEY GARDENS EASTCOTE PINNER

Removal of fascia to rear elevation; alterations to single storey rear extension
including pitched roof with crown; new brickwork to match existing; retention
of extension once altered.

03/05/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 45146/APP/2017/1639

Drawing Nos: Site Location

Block Plan

21600/03 REV D

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The site is occupied by a detached chalet style dwelling that has distinctive mottled brick
walls and a tiled, hipped roof. A recessed flat roof side extension has been made to the
southern elevation. The unauthorised extension, that is the concern of this application, has
been made to the rear of the original dwelling as well as to the rear of the aforementioned
side extension. The area to the front of the site is block paved and is bordered by a low
brick wall with additional hedging. The rear amenity space is enclosed by a mix of
approximately 1.8 metre high brick wall and timber fencing. To the rear of the site there are
detached outbuildings as well as some mature coniferous trees.

The site is located on a corner plot where Dovecot Close branches off from Rodney
Gardens. The surrounding area forms part of the Eastcote Park Estate Conservation Area.
The appraisal document for the Conservation Area notes that there are a number of groups
of dwellings designs present within the Conservation Area, one of which is the bungalows
on the northern side of Rodney Gardens, of which the dwelling occupying the site is an
example.

The surrounding area is laid out with grass verges and landscaping, including mature
trees, helping to generate a verdant character and appearance.

This application has been referred to planning committee for determination. The Council's
constitution requires all applications relating to a site where enforcement notices have been
served to be taken to planning committee (even when the enforcement does not relate to
the proposal, as is the case in this instance).

The proposal involves modification works to be made to an existing unauthorised single-
storey extension to the rear of the dwelling. The structure, in its current condition, is a flat
roof element projecting to the rear of the dwelling and also behind earlier single-storey side
extensions to the dwelling. The height of the existing flat roof exceeds that of the main roof

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

03/05/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Prior to the unauthorised extension being constructed, there were smaller single-storey flat
roof extensions to the rear of the dwelling.

The application represents a second attempt to modify the unauthorised extension in order
for it to appear as an acceptable feature within the surrounding Conservation Area. A
previous scheme was refused due to the as it was considered that the bulk, mass and
appearance of the extension were not sympathetic towards the original building or the
wider conservation area.

An application was also refused for a certificate to confirm the extension as lawful
development as the extension does not qualify as permitted development due to its
dimensions and its positioning.

eaves and the external finish is in yellow brick.

The proposed modifications involve removing a portion of the extension to the rear of the
ground floor bedroom and forming a pitched crown roof over the parts of the extension that
are to the rear of the original dwelling. The remainder of the extension will be maintained as
a flat roof feature but with the roof top lowered to match the eaves height of the main roof
as well as the roof top height of the earlier flat roof extension to which it is attached. A
parapet wall will be maintained on the roof, in alignment with the side elevation of the
extension.

The extension projects 4 metres back from the rear elevation of the original dwelling house
and earlier side extension, with the exception of the 3 metre wide section to the rear of
ground floor bedroom 2 which would be partially removed so as to only project 1 metre
from the original rear elevation.

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

A site notice was displayed on a lamp post adjacent to the site. In addition, a total of 12
letters were sent to nearby residents and interested parties notifying them of the proposed

45146/APP/2016/2858

45146/APP/2016/711

50 Rodney Gardens Eastcote Pinner

50 Rodney Gardens Eastcote Pinner

Retention of single storey rear extension in a modified form involving removal of fascia to rear

elevation; alterations to roof to form a crown roof with parapet to rear; and works to brickwork to

match the finish of existing dwelling.

Alteration to existing single storey rear extension to remove projecting fascia and reducing eaves

(Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

10-10-2016

17-06-2016

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Refused

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal:

Appeal:

24-JAN-17 Dismissed

Page 54



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

development and inviting comments.

One letter of objection received:

This is still an illegal build which has been refused on 4 occasions. The new plans are just
as bad and is still an over development in a conservation area. There is no guarantee that
the work would be carried out as per the plans as they kept saying before the bricks they
erect matched, which obviously didn't. To allow any sort of change would open the
floodgates to more illegal builds.

OFFICER COMMENT: The development is currently unlawful not illegal. A sample panel of
the brick work will be required prior to works commencing and a strict time limit for the
works to be carried out in will be attached to any approval given.

EASTCOTE CONSERVATION PANEL:

This dwelling forms part of the Eastcote Park Estate Conservation Area and has been the
subject of numerous
applications, appeals and enforcement measures. We do not find this current application
an acceptable answer to the problem. Extra rooms on the ground floor namely a television
room and office area should be classed as bedrooms, making this a 5 bedroom dwelling.

The previous application 45146/APP/2016/2858 was refused at appeal. Ref
APP/R5510/D/16/3161710.

The Inspector considered that the bricks could not be successfully tinted and that the
crown roof was not
acceptable. Extract below,

"The design and the appearance of the proposed crown roof over the extension would
however be very much at odds with the roof design of the host building and the more
traditional pitched roofs of many of the buildings in this section of the CA. The proposed
roof, combined with the higher eaves of the extension and the parapet at the rear, results in
the extension overwhelming the form of the original dwelling. In addition, the tinting of the
existing stark yellow brickwork would in my opinion fail to achieve a match with the
distinctive and mottled appearance of the existing brickwork"

Although this application shows that the rear element will be demolished and rebuilt in
matching bricks the crown roof
still remains.

The applicant states that she received pre--application advice from James Rodger and
refers to an email dated
28.04.17. This communication does not appear on the web site. Please can a copy be
made available?

We ask for the application to be refused and enforcement action taken to remove this
extension. It must be noted that should the LPA be minded to approve this application and
standard conditions are imposed, then there is no reason for the applicant to carry out the
work.

Condition 1 usually gives the applicant 3 years in which to start the building work, but no

Page 55



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Part 2 Policies:

action will be taken if the
work is not carried out. Therefore, a grant of planning permission will allow the building to
stay as it is.

OFFICER COMMENTS: It is not for the Council to dictate what rooms contained within
extensions will be used for. The size of the extension will be taken into account. It should
be noted that there are extensions of a similar footprint at the adjoining property. The area
of the crown roof element has been reduced and the roof pitch depth increased and it is
considered that this is a satisfactory response to the inspector's comments. The standard
time period condition would not be used as the extension has already been built. A suitable
condition requiring remediation works are undertaken within an appropriate time frame will
be attached to any approval given.

INTERNAL CONSULTEE'S

CONSERVATION & URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

This bungalow had a shallow, 'L' shaped glazed conservatory at the rear, which was
removed a few years ago and replaced with a deep, yellow, flat roofed rear extension, over
3.722m deep, and 9.717m wide, its roof rising above the eaves of the hipped main roof and
finishing with a deep white plastic fascia.  After it failed, retrospectively, to obtain a CLD, it
was the subject of an enforcement notice for its total removal (notice upheld on appeal).
Various negotiations have taken place with the applicants since then in an attempt to
secure an acceptable outcome.

This current proposal has introduced a set back on the side closest to the road, and a
crown roof over the section adjoining, which is located behind the house.  There would then
be a very unsuccessful join with the current flat roofed kitchen extension behind the garage,
which could have been better designed had the application not been part retrospective.
However, given that this section of the house is furthest from public view, and the kitchen is
already in place, on balance no objection would be made.

However, any permission granted should have a condition relating to the brickwork and tiles
(brick and tile samples and any brick tinting) to be agreed on site prior to commencement
of work, together with details of fenestration, to ensure that the alterations are as sensitively
carried out as possible.

4.

Page 56



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE4

EPECA

HDAS-EXT

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.8

NPPF

NPPF12

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Eastcote Park Estate Conservation Area - Management Plan - March 2008

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

DESIGN & VISUAL IMPACT:

The extension is sited in a prominent position on a corner plot within a Conservation Area.
In its current form, it is a clearly visible and disruptive feature which detracts from the
character and appearance its surroundings. The roof top height, which is above that of the
eaves of the original dwelling results in the extension appearing cumbersome and
unbalancing and the yellow brick finish is visually jarring when viewed in context with the
distinctive mottled brick finish of the original dwelling.

The current application involves reducing the footprint of the extension by approximately 9
m². It is considered that this measure will soften the visual impact within the street scene
as the side wall of the extension will be stepped an additional 3 metres from the boundary.
Furthermore, it enables a distinction between the original dwelling and the extension,
preventing the flank wall of the original dwelling from being over-extended and monotonous
and helping to foster a visually subservient relationship between the extension and the
original dwelling.

A pitched crown roof will be formed over the part of the extension to the rear of the original
dwelling. Unlike the previous application, the pitched part of the roof will be deeper,
ensuring it appears as a more dominant feature and also complements the main pitched
roof. In addition, the slope angle of the pitched roof matches that of the main roof, aiding
visual integration, and the eaves height also matches that of the main roof enhancing
assimilation and vastly improving on the current awkward relationship between the two
features.

The crown roof proposed as part of the previously refused scheme, in combination with the
shallow pitch of that roof, was criticised by the planning inspector in dismissing an appeal
against the refusal. It is considered that the current arrangement is acceptable as the
pitched part of the roof has been increased in depth and the area of flat crown roof has
been reduced by way of removing a portion of the rear extension.

The part of the extension to the rear of the earlier flat roof extension to the side of the
dwelling will remain as a flat roof but with the roof top height dropped to match that of the

Page 57



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

adjoining flat roof extension as well as the eaves of the main roof. It is considered that this
produces a visually sympathetic appearance and unifies the two flat roof extensions,
thereby preventing the extensions from appearing cluttered or discordant.

The yellow brick outer walls of the extension are to be replaced with mottled brickwork that
will replicate that of the original dwelling, as well as neighbouring properties. It is considered
that this measure will ensure that the extension appears far more visually regressive within
the Conservation Area and would no longer appear incongruous or unsympathetic towards
its surroundings. Due to the critical importance of protecting the character and appearance
of the surrounding Conservation Area, it is considered to be imperative to attach a condition
requiring samples of the bricks to be used for the external walls to be submitted to the
Council and approved prior to commencement of works. The approved bricks would
thereafter have to be used in the construction. The sample requested will be of a panel so
as to show the arrangement of different coloured bricks in order to be assured that it will
match the arrangement of the brickwork of the original dwelling.

It is therefore considered that the remodelled extension, including the change in external
materials, would relate sympathetically towards the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and preserves the integrity of the Conservation Area, in accordance with
Policies BE 4,  BE 13 and BE 19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Policies 7.4, 7.6 and 7.8 of the London Plan (2016).

Furthermore, the extension would maintain visual subservience towards the original
dwelling and would not appear overly dominant or unbalancing, thereby satisfying the
requirements of Policy BE 15 of the Local Plan.

AMENITY IMPACT:

With regard to the amenities of neighbours, the extension is a single-storey structure of
modest height that projects 4 metres to the rear of the site, a similar distance to the
existing extensions at the only adjoining property, 48 Rodney Gardens. As such, the
proposal complies with the standards for rear extensions set out in the HDAS Residential
Extensions SPD para. 3.4. Given these factors it is not considered that it will appear
overbearing towards neighbouring properties, nor would it be the cause of undue levels of
overshadowing towards habitable rooms and amenity space. As such, it is considered that
the proposed extension complies with Policies BE 20 and BE 21 of the Local Plan and
Policy 7.6 of the London Plan.

All windows face towards the far end of the rear garden and not directly towards any
adjoining neighbours. In any case, views from the ground floor windows to areas outside of
the curtilage would be obstructed by existing site boundary treatment. It is therefore
considered that the proposal would not result in any intrusive views towards neighbouring
properties and, as such, satisfies Policy BE 24 of the Local Plan.

The extension is sited on a fairly large plot and ample amenity space, in excess of
Hillingdon HDAS standards, will be preserved for use by occupants in accordance with
Policy BE 23 of the Local Plan. Furthermore, the extension does not block or overshadow
any habitable room windows on the original dwelling and all habitable rooms will therefore
continue to benefit from unaltered levels of natural light permeation in accordance with
Policy BE 20 of the Local Plan.

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved, subject to conditions.

Page 58



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

CAC12

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

Samples of materials

The modifications to the existing extension including the replacement of the pitched roof
with a flat roof hereby approved shall be commenced within 3 months of the date of this
decision and be fully completed within 6 months of the date of this decision.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans:-

Site and Location Plan;
21600/03 REV D;

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies BE 13, BE 15, BE 19, BE 20, BE 21 and BE 24 (November 2012)
and the London Plan (2016) Policies 7.4 and 7.6.

Samples of all materials and finishes to be used for all external surfaces and fenestrations
of the approved extension shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of any works. This shall include a sample panel
showing the arrangement of the different coloured bricks to be followed.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

1

2

3

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The applicant is advised to submit materials details to the Local Planning
Authority as soon as possible, in compliance with condition 3 of this permission
as the Council will expect the applicant to fully comply eith the timescales
indicated in condition 1 of this permission.

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for

RECOMMENDATION6.

Page 59



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3

development control decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14

(prohibition of discrimination).

Standard Informatives 

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE4

EPECA

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Eastcote Park Estate Conservation Area - Management Plan -
March 2008

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 60



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HDAS-EXT

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.8

NPPF

NPPF12

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

National Planning Policy Framework

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,

Page 61



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 

Page 62



North Planning Committee - 20th June 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

James McLean Smith 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 63



Orinis

L
in

d
en

 C
o
ttag

e

55

66

Allo
tm

ent G
ard

ens

11

30

2
4

C
U

R
Z
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

2
0

46

34

27

11

10

24

2

16

14

29

15

R
O

D
N
EY G

A
R
D

6

Butts Mead

H
IG

H
 R

O
A
D
 E

A
S
TC

O

D
O

V
E
C
O

T C
L

14

54

50

1
2

3
2

3
8

45

Outfall

35

RODNEY G
ARDENS

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

50 Rodney Gardens

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

45146/APP/2017/1639

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 64



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

78A THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Roof extensions to provide additional space at first floor level

28/03/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 38308/APP/2017/1130

Drawing Nos: 78A TD/P/04 Rev A Existing Elevations

78A TD/P/05 Rev A Proposed Floor & Roof Plans

78A TD/P/03 Rev A Existing Floor & Roof Plans

78A TD/P/06 Rev A Proposed Elevations

78A TD/P/02 Rev A Existing & Proposed Site Plans

78A TD/P/01 Rev A Site Location Plan

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site comprises a detached five-bed dwelling located on the southern side of
The Drive. The site is bordered to the north by the Grade II Listed North Lodge, 80 The
Drive, with Harvil Road located along the eastern side boundary. 20 Harvill Road lies to the
south whilst 78 The Drive is located along the western boundary. The application site is
covered by TPO 405.

The application property was constructed in 1988 following the sub-division of 80 The Drive
(planning application ref: 38308/B/88/0005, dated 03-06-1988). The existing dormers on the
property are the same as those approved as part of planning permission ref:
38308/B/88/0005.

This application has been referred to planning committee for determination. The Council's
constitution requires all applications relating to a site where enforcement notices have been
served to be taken to planning committee (even when the enforcement does not relate to
the proposal, as is the case in this instance).

Planning permission is sought for roof extensions to provide additional space at first floor
level. The property would extend into existing roof space at the sides of the first floor. The
roof eaves would be raised from 2.93m to 5.15m. The roof ridge would remain at 9.72m in
height.

38308/86/1396 78a The Drive Ickenham  

Residential development - 1 unit (Outline)(P)

Decision Date: Withdrawn

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

07/04/2017Date Application Valid:

Appeal:

Agenda Item 10

Page 65



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

38308/A/86/2136

38308/APP/2002/1705

38308/APP/2002/2598

38308/APP/2012/2191

38308/APP/2013/2277

38308/APP/2015/1915

38308/B/88/0005

38308/D/88/2182

38308/E/89/0743

38308/F/89/1161

38308/G/95/1348

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

Part Of 80 The Drive Ickenham 

Part Of 80 The Drive Ickenham 

78a The Drive Ickenham

Erection of one 4 bedroom dwelling house, with detached double garage.

INSTALLATION OF TWO SIDE DORMERS

LOFT CONVERSION WITH INSTALLATION OF THREE VELUX TYPE WINDOWS

Conversion of detached garage to granny annex, to include alterations to garage door and

installation of 1 x rooflight

Conversion of detached garage to granny annex, to include alterations to garage door and

installation of a new rooflight

Installation of boundary walls with additional mesh fence to boundary facing Harvil Road (Part

Retrospective)

Erect detached house and garage and detached garage for No. 80.

Erec. of 1 single & 1 double det. garage (details in comp. with cond. 14 of p.p. ref.

38308B/880005)

Details of materials in compliance with condition 2 of planning permission ref. 38308B/88/5 dated

3.6.88 for erection of a detached house & garage & detached garage

Details of landscaping in compliance with condition 8 of planning permission ref. 38308B/ 88/5

dated 3.6.88 for erection of detached house and garage and detached garage to serve No. 80

17-03-1987

16-10-2002

20-08-2003

06-11-2012

15-10-2013

29-07-2015

03-06-1988

17-07-1989

25-05-1989

04-01-1990

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Approved

Refused

Approved

Refused

Refused

Refused

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

31-MAR-14

01-DEC-15

Allowed

Allowed

Page 66



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

A planning application ref: 38308/APP/2002/1705, for the installation of two side dormers
was refused in October 2002. The two proposed dormers would have been located just
below the roof ridge on the front (east) elevation and the rear (west) elevation, and would
have increased the number of dormers on the roof. The planning application was refused
as the size and design of the two dormers was considered to represent a visually intrusive
form of development detrimental to the appearance of the property and the character and
appearance of the street scene. 

The current proposal seeks to extend into the existing roof space at the sides of the first
floor and raise the eaves height; the current proposal would reduce the number of dormers,
providing a less cluttered roof form to the 2002 refused scheme.

The application site was previously subject to an enforcement investigation in regards to an
unauthorised boundary wall and fencing along part of the side boundaries and the rear
boundary next to Harvil Road. A planning application (ref: 38308/APP/2015/1915) to retain
the unauthorised boundary treatment was refused in July 2015. 

Following the refusal of the planning application (ref: 38308/APP/2015/1915), an
enforcement notice was served in September 2015 and required the unauthorised
boundary treatment to be removed. 

38308/TRE/2001/75

38308/TRE/2003/129

38308/TRE/2006/96

38308/TRE/2016/48

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

78a The Drive Ickenham

Tree surgery including reduction of the crown overhanging the roof of the house by reducing by 5-6

metres the lowest branch of the nearest mainstem and by reducing the upper crown by 2-3

metres, to one twin-stemmed Holm Oak (T4) on TPO 405

TREE SURGERY TO ONE HOLM OAK TREE (T4) ON TPO 405

tree surgery to two Holm Oaks (T3 & T4) on TPO 405.

a) approval - To remove from T3 the one stem leaning toward the house and reduce the lateral

branches on the side facing the house by up to 2m, reshaping to live growth, and to remove from

T4 the lowest limb.

b) refusal - To reduce the other overhang to balance T4

TO CARRY OUT TREE SURGERY TO ONE HOLM OAK (T4) ON TPO NO. 405

To carry out tree surgery, including a tip reduction of the crown by up to 2.5m, to one Holm Oak

(T4) on TPO 405

16-11-1995

08-08-2001

08-12-2003

05-01-2007

21-04-2016

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Approved

Approved

SD

Approved

Approved

Comment on Planning History

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Page 67



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

An appeal against the refused planning application (ref: APP/R5510/D/15/3133760) was
allowed by the Planning Inspectorate in December 2015. As such, no further action was
taken by the Council's Planning Enforcement Team.

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE24

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Consultation letters were sent to 3 local owners/occupiers and a site notice was displayed.
No responses have been received.

Ickenham Residents Association:
No response has been received.

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main planning issues relate to the impact the proposed development would have on
the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual amenities of
the surrounding area and the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring dwellings.

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fails to
harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) require alterations and extensions to
harmonise with the scale, form, architectural composition and proportions of the original
building. Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 68



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

RECOMMENDATION6.

(November 2012) seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas
complements or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The existing roof form is unusual in its design, comprising a number of dormers to the side
elevations; two existing side dormers on the first floor would be enlarged as part of the
proposed works. The proposal would extend into the existing roof space at the sides of the
first floor, and two smaller dormers located either side of the ridge line would be removed.
There would not be an increase in the ridge height.

The proposed roof alterations to the property are considered to be acceptable as regards
to their overall size and design, and would improve the overall visual appearance of the
property by reducing the number of dormers on the roof. The proposed roof form would not
appear out of character with the building and surrounding properties.

The property benefits from a high level of screening due to changes in ground levels and
the existing boundary treatment along Harvil Road, and so the proposed roof alterations
would not be highly visible from the street scene. 

The proposal would therefore not have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the original property, the street scene and the surrounding area, thereby
complying with Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires developments to protect the privacy of neighbouring dwellings. The proposal
would include a number of new high level windows on the first floor; the windows on the
side elevations would be obscure glazed as per the existing side windows, in order to
prevent loss of privacy to occupiers and neighbours; this is to be secured by way of a
condition on any consent granted. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with
Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to ensure that adequate external amenity space is retained for residential properties.
The Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts SPD states that 100sq.m of external amenity
should be retained for units with five or more bedrooms. The application property is
provided with over 500sq.m of external amenity space.

The proposed roof alterations would extend into the existing roof space on the first floor,
enlarging the existing rooms, and would not extend beyond the existing footprint of the
building. The proposal would not result in the loss of external amenity space and would
therefore comply with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) .

The application site has a driveway which provides parking for two vehicles. The proposed
roof alterations would not impact on the existing parking arrangement within the site.

The application is recommended for approval.

Page 69



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES3

RES4

RES12

RES13

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

No additional windows or doors

Obscure Glazing

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, 

78A TD/P/01 Rev A Site Location Plan
78A TD/P/02 Rev A Existing & Proposed Site Plans
78A TD/P/03 Rev A Existing Floor & Roof Plans
78A TD/P/04 Rev A Existing Elevations
78A TD/P/05 Rev A Proposed Floor & Roof Plans
78A TD/P/06 Rev A Proposed Elevations

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England)Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The windows facing 80 The Drive and 20 Harvil Road shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished
floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

1

2

3

4

INFORMATIVES

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically

Standard Informatives 

Page 70



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14

(prohibition of discrimination).

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE24

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 71



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

Page 72



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Katherine Mills 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 73



H
A

R
V

IL
 R

7
8
a

78

61.9m

70

2
0

80

62.8m

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

78a The Drive

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

38308/APP/2017/1130

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 74



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

54 PARKFIELD ROAD ICKENHAM

Two x 2-storey dwellings with habitable roofspace, outbuildings to rear,
installation of vehicular crossover to front and associated landscaping works,
involving demolition of existing bungalow.

20/06/2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 20899/APP/2016/2376

Drawing Nos: PP01-AM-04-16 Rev 1
PP09-AM-06-16 Rev 1
PP10-AM-06-16 Rev 2
Photographs
PP002-AM-05-16
PP003-AM-05-16
PP004-AM-06-16 Rev 1
PP005-AM-06-16 Rev 1
PP-AM-05-16
Design & Access Statement
PP001-AM-06-16 Rev 1
Energy Assessment
Regulations Compliance Report
Daylight. Sunlight and Overshadowing Study
PP08a-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP08b-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP07-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP06-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP02-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP03-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP04-AM-08-16 Rev 1
PP05-AM-08-16 Rev 1
Flood Risk Assessment August 2016
Sequential Test Updated February 2017

Date Plans Received: 30/06/2016

20/06/2016

20/12/2016

01/07/2016

16/09/2016

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The property is located within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). This proposal considers the
demolition of the existing bungalow and replacement with 2 detached dwellings. 

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to
harmonise with the existing street scene, and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure
that new development within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and
the character of the area. 

01/07/2016Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 11

Page 75



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposed dwellings are acceptable in design terms and would meet all relevant
Council standards in terms of unit size, amenity space provision and car parking and as
such would afford future occupiers with adequate levels of amenity.  No objection is
therefore raised in this regard. 

However the site lies within Flood Zone 2 and the proposal fails to demonstrate that there
is adequate justification for the intensification for the site for residential purposes in
accordance with the requirements of Policy EM6 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan,
2012, Part 2 and the NPPF.

As such it is recommended for refusal.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The Local Planning Authority consider the development to be unacceptable in principle as
insufficient evidence has been submitted to demonstrate under a sequential test that,
given the application site's status under land designated as Flood Zone 2, alternative sites
with a lower probability of flooding could accommodate the proposed residential
development. The Council is meeting its average annual housing target and there is
evidence of a continued supply of small housing sites outside of flood zone 2. The
proposal therefore is contrary to Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012); Policies 5.12, 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan
(March 2016 and the NPPF.

1

I59

I52

I53

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 76



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a large sized plot, located on the North Eastern side of Parkfield
Road. It currently comprises a large detached 4 bed bungalow with an attached garage to
one side and an additional parking space in front. There is also another driveway to the
other side of the property. It benefits from a good sized rear garden. To either side there
are detached bungalows however the general street scene is made up from a mixture of
house types and styles including bungalows, chalet bungalows and two storey dwellings. It
is also noted that this plot is approximately twice the width as most of the others in the
area.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

EM6

H3

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.3

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

NPPF1

NPPF6

NPPF7

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
(2012) Flood Risk Management

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Local character

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

Page 77



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application site lies within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing bungalow and the erection of two x 2-
storey dwellings with habitable roofspace, outbuildings to rear, the installation of vehicular
crossover to front and associated landscaping works.
The application has been accompanied by a Flood risk assessment & Sequential Test
(over 100 pages of written reports). A Sequential Test should be applied to demonstrate
that there are no reasonably available sites in areas with a lower probability of flooding that
would be appropriate to the type of development or land use proposed. This report has
evaluated all the Sites within the wards of Ickenham, West Ruislip, South Ruislip, Hillingdon
East Ward and Uxbridge North. 

Extracts from the applicants reports are copied below: 

'The proposed development comprises the construction of two four bedroom detached
houses with associated driveway, car parking and landscaping. According to the
Environment Agency Flood Map for Planning Purposes, the Site is located in fluvial Flood
Zone 2 and is not protected by flood defences. Modelled flood level data was obtained from
the Environment Agency and using the most up to date guidance for climate change (May,
2016), the 25% central allowance was used to inform the design flood level. As a result 0.5
m was added to the 1 in 100 year flood level to give a final design flood level of 42.67
mAOD. Surface water flood risk is Low to Very Low and groundwater flood risk is
negligible....
Mitigation and Next steps following GeoSmart's assessment of flood risk to the site, it is
recommended that: 
- Minimum floor levels for the proposed houses are set no lower than 43.27 mAOD
(600mm above the 1 in 100 year plus climate change flood level of 42.67 mAOD); 
- Residents should register themselves to the Environment Agency's flood warning direct
scheme; and 
-  A Sustainable urban Drainage Strategy (SuDS) is developed for the site, see the further
information section at the end of this report.

The Sequential Test report has been updated to search for any available Sites between the
threshold of 0.057 and 0.13 hectares. The Sequential Test (Appendix B) report has been
updated to reference the definition of 'reasonably available Sites'. The report identifies Sites
that are a range of sizes, the smallest identified in the search of the Local Plan is
approximately 0.17 ha. As part of the updated report, we have undertaken our search in
accordance with the minimum and maximum thresholds (0.057 ha to 0.13 ha) set out by
the local planning authority and already included these thresholds within both the Local
Plan Site search and the review of alternative Sites. There are no Sites which could be
compared and that were identified within both Flood Zones 1 and 2 and suitable for
residential development.
In the revised version of the Sequential Test report (Appendix B), the search radius has
been increased to locate alternative Sites within a much larger radius than in the original
report and now includes Sites within Ickenham, West Ruislip, South Ruislip, Hillingdon
East and North Uxbridge.... 
Concluding Remarks: The Sequential Test confirms there are no Sites which are of
comparable size, which are capable of providing suitable housing in either the Local Plan
or review of alternative Site searches. Moreover, the recommendations for mitigation
outlined within the flood risk assessment for the Site would ensure the proposals would be

Page 78



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

No relevant planning history exists.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

safe for the lifetime of the development and would not lead to flood risk elsewhere.'

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

EM6

H3

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.3

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

NPPF1

NPPF6

NPPF7

HDAS-LAY

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

(2012) Flood Risk Management

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Local character

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 79



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LDF-AH

Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Access Officer - No comments to make.

Highways - The site has a PTAL value of 1 (poor) which indicates there will be a strong reliance on
the private car for trip making. My comments this time round are very similar with the exception that
the on-site parking is reduced to 2 spaces per dwelling which is adequate for a 4 bed dwelling.
There will be two new vehicular access points required to be constructed at the applicant's expense.
The latest plans show refuse/recycling facilities included along with a secure covered cycle storage
for 1 cycle and this should be 2 cycles so could you condition this please if permission is being
granted. There will be slightly more traffic generated as a result of the current proposal but capacity
is not an issue at this location. On the basis of the above comments I have no significant concerns.

Trees/Landscape Officer - Initial concern was raised over the excessive parking and the dominating
effect of so much hard surfacing to the detrimental to the character and appearance of the area -
and is contrary to LBH design guidance. The proliferation of hard surfacing in the front garden is also
contrary to SUDS guidance.

Subsequent plans have been submitted for the provision of two parking spaces and some soft
landscaping. Although it is noted that as shown this is slightly less than the 25% requirement, there
is sufficient space for this level of soft landscaping to be increased without compromising the
parking provision. This could therefore be addressed with the condition requiring the submission of a
suitable landscaping scheme. 

Flood and Water Management - The applicant has not provided sufficient evidence of the additional
dwelling having passed the Sequential Test. Policy EM6 clearly states that the Sequential Test
should be undertaken prior to the Exception Test. I object to the proposed development as there is
no justification why this development should be sited at a location which is shown to be within Flood
Zone 2. The proposal adds an additional dwelling into Flood Zone 2 and therefore this is not

External Consultees

8 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 26 July 2016. A site notice was
also erected on a lamp post to the front of the site. 

There were no responses.

Parkfield Road/Oak Avenue Petition Group - No response.

Ickenham Residents Association - No response.

Eastcote Residents Association - No response.

Page 80



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

considered acceptable.

In accordance with the NPPF 'inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be
avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk, but where development is
necessary, making it safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere' The developer should justify with
evidence to the LPA what area of search has been used when making the application. There is no
justification as to the need for additional 4 bedroom houses in Ickenham and the surrounding area. 

The sequential test provided clearly shows that there is land available in Flood Zone 1 suitable for
residential development. The ownership of a site of the size for two properties is not appropriate to
then restrict the sequential test to that size of site to justify its development. 

The Council needs to be assured that if they are placing new development in areas of flood risk then
there must be an appropriate reason. This development will introduce a new dwelling into an area
with a high probability of flooding. Plus additional residents at risk as people returning to their homes
may be inclined to navigate flood waters or seek to retrieve flooded property placing themselves as
risk and putting added burden on emergency services.

The Council has to be able to accept that the benefits of the development outweigh this risk by
determining there is no available land at a lower risk of flooding. It is for the applicant to satisfy the
Council as to why a new development should be located in this area. Without suitable evidence the
Council should look to alternative sites at a lower risk to fulfil its housing needs. The majority of the
Borough is outside of flood zones 2 & 3, including its main centres. The Council's housing land
studies suggest that there are many locations across the Borough not at risk of flooding.

Only once the sequential test has been passed would the applicant then need to address the
Exception test, demonstrating that flood risk can be suitably mitigated in accordance with Local and
National Policy. For the Exception Test to be passed it must demonstrate that the development
provides wider sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh flood risk and a site specific
flood risk assessment must demonstrate that the development will be safe for its lifetime taking
account of the vulnerability of it users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere. The first element is
not addressed and the justification that it provides an additional house towards housing supply is not
considered adequate.

Planning Policy - Having looked at the latest Sequential Test and Flood Risk information, I note the
following:

1) The Council is meeting its average annual housing target of 559 units per annum, as defined in
the London Plan (March 2016). The latest information on windfalls indicates that on average, the
Council delivers 174 units on sites of 0.25 hectares or less. 

2) The latest information on housing need indicates a borough-wide need to provide larger family
units over the period of the Local Plan, however no area specific needs are identified for the
Ickenham area.

3) Taking account of its designated flood zone, borough-wide housing needs are not sufficient to
justify the development of additional residential units on the site. 

4) The proposal involves a net gain of 1 additional residential unit. Notwithstanding the presence of
any additional planning constraints, many of the sites identified in Table 2 of the sequential test
document are of a sufficient size to accommodate this requirement. 

5) I am therefore of the view that there are sequentially preferable sites are available.

Page 81



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF has a requirement to encourage the effective use of land by re-using land.
Policy 3.4 of The London Plan (2015) promotes the optimisation of housing output within
different types of location. Policy 3.8 of The London Plan also encourages the Council to
provide a range of housing choices in order to take account of the various different groups
who require different types of housing. Consideration will also be given to the accessibility
of the site to services and amenities.

Policy H3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
advises the loss of residential accommodation will only be permitted if it is replaced within
the boundary of the site. An increase in the residential accommodation will be sought,
subject to other policies in the plan.

Whilst the site lies within an established residential area, due to the sites location within
Flood Zone 2, there is an objection in principle to the intensification of the residential use of
the site contrary to the requirements of Policy EM6 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan,
2012, Part 2 and the NPPF.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that the new development takes into account
local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Par two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development which
would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the design
of the existing and adjoining sites.

The existing street scene is varied comprising one, one and a half and two storey dwellings
of varying design. The proposed dwellings have been designed to reflect various features
within the street scene and have a hipped roof design with front and rear projections and a
catslide feature to the front including a dormer window. In order to minimise the height and
bulk of the proposal the roofs are finished with a small crown. Ordinarily this would be
considered unacceptable, however it is noted that no. 58 has previously been extended
with the addition of a first floor. This was approved at appeal (APP/R5510/A/08/2077613)
where the Inspector considered that "The design of the proposal itself seems to have been

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 82



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

thought through to fit into the streetscene and to minimise the bulk of the resulting building
and I do not think the flat roof element would stand out". Given that the crown elements of
the proposed dwelling are significantly smaller, it would seem unreasonable to refuse this
proposal on that basis alone. Therefore the overall scale of the proposed new dwellings is
considered acceptable. It is also considered that the proposed development would be in
keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area and that its visual
impact is acceptable, in accordance with policies BE13 and BE19 of the UDP saved
policies.

To the rear of the property the proposal includes an outbuilding per dwelling, which
measures 7.8 m in width, 2.7m in depth and has a flat roof of 2.4 m in height. This is
proposed to form a store room and a gymnasium as well as a cycle store to one side. The
size and scale of the proposed outbuildings are in compliance with HDAS requirements
and are considered acceptable.

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: New Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential
developments and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight. The
daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be adequately protected and
careful design can help minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing.

There is currently a large detached bungalow located centrally at the front of the plot,
maintaining a front building line with the adjacent properties but has been extensively built
upon to the rear, measuring 18 m in depth. To the South the existing garage sits very close
to the boundary with no. 52, with the main part of the dwelling set back 2.2 m and projecting
4.2 m beyond the rear of that property. To the North the bungalow is set back 4.15 m from
the boundary with no. 56 however there was previously a car port structure set back 1.25m
from the boundary and projecting 7.6m beyond the rear of that property, which had been
removed at the time of the site visit. 

The plot has been divided into two with 54a proposed on the Northern half and 54b to the
South. The dwellings measure 15 m in depth by 8.5 m in width with a height of 8.1 m. 54b
is centrally positioned within its plot, set back 1m from each boundary and will project 1.6
m beyond the rear of no. 52. The proposal would not compromise a 45 degree line of sight
from this property. 54a has been set back 1 m from the boundary with 54b and 2 m from
the boundary with no. 56. It is noted that although the neighbouring property has been
previously extended, this is not along the boundary with the proposed dwelling. The
proposed dwelling will extend 7.2 m beyond the rear of the neighbouring property with the
two storey element at 4 m in depth and a further single storey element at 3.2 m. Whilst the
two storey element would comply with HDAS requirements, it is acknowledged that the
total depth would exceed HDAS guidance. However this is a reduction in depth to the
existing bungalow and although the 45 degree line of sight crosses the very corner of the
single storey element this would be no deeper than the car port structure that was
previously there and set back from the boundary by an additional 1 m. Therefore, the
proposed dwellings are considered not to result in an unacceptable degree of over
dominance, visual intrusion and over shadowing and would comply with Policy BE1 (Built
Environment) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
and Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

In relation to any loss of privacy arising from the proposal, the principle windows face front
and rear. The side windows are either secondary windows or serve non habitable rooms

Page 83



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

and can be conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below 1.8 m.  Therefore
subject to the appropriate conditions, the proposal is not considered to result in a material
loss of privacy and would comply with Policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

To the rear of the garden of each it is proposed to erect an outbuilding, which would
measures 7.8 m in width and 2.7 m in depth not exceeding 2.4 m in height and set back
from the side boundary by 1 m. Given the degree of separation and the distance from the
adjacent existing residential units, it is not considered the proposed outbuilding would have
a significant impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties.

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. 

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. The standards require a 4
bedroom (8 person) property to have a minimum internal floor area of 130 sq m with an
additional 3 sq m of internal storage. The proposed layouts indicate the dwellings have a
floor area of approximately 250 sq m, in excess of the standard required. The proposal
therefore provides a satisfactory living environment for the future occupants of property in
accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2015.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:
Section 4.9. 

The development provides over the 100 sq m of private amenity space required in
accordance with the Council's adopted standard. The proposal therefore complies with
policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The accompanying plans indicate designated refuse storage to the front. The Highways
Officer has advised that although the plans indicate a cycle store, this should be
conditioned for the provision of at least two cycles.

Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires developments to comply with the Council's Car Parking Standards. 

There are two existing vehicular crossovers one to either side of the site. 54a would utilise
the existing Northern crossover, whilst 54b would have a repositioned crossover. The
proposal includes 2 parking spaces for each dwelling and the Highways Officer has
advised that this would be acceptable.  Therefore, it is considered that the development
would comply with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2.

A Secured by Design condition could be added to any approval to ensure the development
complies with such principles should the application be acceptable in all other respects.

Page 84



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The Access Officer has not raised any concerns relating to Lifetime Home Standards and
to achieving level access.

Not applicable to this application.

The Council's Landscaping Officer initially raised concerns over the excessive parking
provision to the front and lack of soft landscaping. A revised plan has been submitted to
show two parking spaces and some soft landscaping. A condition for the submission of a
landscape scheme would be required to identify details of the surface materials and the
soft landscaping provision to ensure this exceeds the required 25%.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The site lies within Flood Zone 2, where development for the provision of additional
residential properties is strictly controlled. The Flood and Water Management Officer has
raised concerns that the proposal has failed to justify why this development should be sited
at this location. The full consultation comments state: 

"The applicant has not provided sufficient evidence of the additional dwelling having passed
the Sequential Test. Policy EM6 clearly states that the Sequential Test should be
undertaken prior to the Exception Test. I object to the proposed development as there is no
justification why this development should be sited at a location which is shown to be within
Flood Zone 2. The proposal adds an additional dwelling into Flood Zone 2 and therefore this
is not considered acceptable.

In accordance with the NPPF 'inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should
be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk, but where
development is necessary, making it safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere' The
developer should justify with evidence to the LPA what area of search has been used when
making the application. There is no justification as to the need for additional 4 bedroom
houses in Ickenham and the surrounding area. 

The sequential test provided clearly shows that there is land available in Flood Zone 1
suitable for residential development. The ownership of a site of the size for two properties
is not appropriate to then restrict the sequential test to that size of site to justify its
development.

The Council needs to be assured that if they are placing new development in areas of flood
risk then there must be an appropriate reason. This development will introduce a new
dwelling into an area with a high probability of flooding. Plus additional residents at risk as
people returning to their homes may be inclined to navigate flood waters or seek to retrieve
flooded property placing themselves as risk and putting added burden on emergency
services.

The Council has to be able to accept that the benefits of the development outweigh this risk
by determining there is no available land at a lower risk of flooding. It is for the applicant to
satisfy the Council as to why a new development should be located in this area. Without
suitable evidence the Council should look to alternative sites at a lower risk to fulfil its

Page 85



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

housing needs. The majority of the Borough is outside of flood zones 2 & 3, including its
main centres. The Council's housing land studies suggest that there are many locations
across the Borough not at risk of flooding.

Only once the sequential test has been passed would the applicant then need to address
the Exception test, demonstrating that flood risk can be suitably mitigated in accordance
with Local and National Policy. For the Exception Test to be passed it must demonstrate
that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh
flood risk and a site specific flood risk assessment must demonstrate that the development
will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of it users, without increasing
flood risk elsewhere. The first element is not addressed and the justification that it provides
an additional house towards housing supply is not considered adequate."

It is further noted that Hillingdon is currently delivering housing requirements defined within
the London Plan and has a clear 5 year housing supply. Since 1 April 2016, 52 additional
windfall housing units have been approved in Ickenham Ward alone in 1-10 unit
development proposals, further diminishing the need to build on this and other flood Zone
sites.

It is therefore considered that the proposal fails demonstrate that there is adequate
justification for the intensification for the site for residential purposes in accordance with the
requirements of Policy EM6 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2 and the
NPPF.

Not applicable to this application.

The issues raised have been addressed appropriately in the report.

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.

On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London
Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

Not applicable to this application.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use

Page 86



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed dwellings are acceptable in design terms and would meet all relevant
Council standards in terms of unit size, amenity space provision and car parking and as
such would afford future occupiers with adequate levels of amenity.  No objection is

Page 87



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

therefore raised in this regard. However the site lies within Flood Zone 2 and the proposal
fails demonstrate that there is adequate justification for the intensification for the site for
residential purposes in accordance with the requirements of Policy EM6 of the adopted
Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2 and the NPPF.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 88



34

Sta

El

Sub

D
ef

D
ef

C
F

PA
R
K
FIE

L
D
 R

O
A
D

61

53

Pavilion

42

52

55

53
a

64

Mad Field Covert

41

41
a

37

49

62

29

37

34a

43

32

30

51

55
a

39

48

36

LB

57

39

37
a

Ickenham
 G

reenCricket Ground

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

54 Parkfield Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

20899/APP/2016/2376

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 91

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 105

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



House

Wincombe Court

1

3

New

43.3m

1

2
8
1

123

111

106

TUDOR CLOSE

11

27

13

41 39

7

2

1
2

Pounden Court

B
L

A
G

R
O

V
E

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

11 to 11

8

5

12

The B
la

ck H
ors

e

9

1116

Cottage

1

FLAG W
ALK

T
h
e R

o
sery

LB

9
0

SUTTO
N C

LO
SE

20

to

Flag

27

45.6m

Bower

121

81

83

29

109

1 to 13

AITKEN CLOSE

Barnet

ESS

1a

(P
H)

15

22

EASTCOTE

1

43.3m

Cottages

43.9m

3

House
Willow Tree

25

TCB

94

92a

1

Riv
er P

in
n

7
9

Bla
ck H

ors
e P

ara
de

32

4

14

3

S
P
R

IN
G

 D
R

IV
E

H
IG

H
 R

O
A
D

MOUNT PARK R
OAD

FB
D

ean
's C

o
ttag

e

92

Old Forge

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Eastcote Service Station

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

3689/ADV/2017/16

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



12b
BURBERY CLOSE

4

1
3

11 1
2

13 10

6
1

Pine
sHigh

3

2

1
19

Surgery

Dev
aris

41

4

1a

South Cottage

Inve
resk

27

Chey
ham

38

14a

Cottag
e

Mullac
ottOakle

igh

15

36

WICKHAM CLOSE

34
34a

FALLOWFIELD CL

OLIVIA GARDENS

12

40

4

Cott
ageBroc

kley
Garage

9

14

3836a

11

1

1

12a 1

4

Heac
ham

Grange

El So
lana

a

3

Little

12

Rho
des

Marsto
n

BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH

Even
ley

1
5

MIKADO CLOSE
ESS

Talb
ot

D
on

ni
ng

to
n 

C
ot

ta
ge

1920

High
 View

LEYS CLOSE

1

50

9
75

WorkhouseThe Old 1

Drak
es

11

1

20

14

88.1m

52

CottageTrumper's
11

Cott
age

2

22

2

1

HAM
BLE

TON
 CL

OSE

DAI
RY F

ARM
 LAN

E

LittleHammonds

3

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

3 Olivia Gardens

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
4672/APP/2017/765

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



33

COU
RT R

OAD

33a

26

30

19

22

38.1m

15

26

31

4818

VYN
ERS

 WA
Y

THE CHASE

29

ALB
ANY

 CLO
SE

27

1

39

5

15

56

39.6m

42

53

35

38.7m

37

42

40SWAKELEYS DRIVE
´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

3 Albany Close

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
72581/APP/2017/1057

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



11

Argyle

Shelter

Shelter

SL

21
21

20

1211

Hawthorne Court

11

1413

12
178

3

38 39

2

2

109

1

16

21

7 6

18

21

19

22
15 14

15

StaSubEl

1 to 5

GraceCourt

Lyn
x Ho

use

4241

Clinic

Post

50 4

49
47

45

16 to 20 8 to 12 1 to 5

Fairfield

70.1m

40 t
o 49

WaysWest
87

76

55

66
86

OAK
DAL

E AV
ENU

E

HotelHillsNorthwood

Church

WINDSOR CLOSE

PC

2

91
89

Rye
field

 Co
urtPOLB

Bank

56

27

65
77

SL

41
Kin

gdo
m H

all

64

6
1

MP 13

51
29

27
53

The

14 t
o 20

34
36

71.6m

CRESCENT

2 to 12

69.2m

22

JOE
L ST

REE
T

Rail Lodge

42

BRIARWOOD DRIVE

SL

1 to 5

13

73

61

36

30

37

28

91

67

RYEFIELD

Works
46

28

FERNDOWN

Northwood Hills Station (LU)

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

53-55 The BroadwayJoel Street

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
5564/APP/2016/3908

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Orinis

Linden Cottage

55

66

Allotment Gardens

11

30

24
CUR

ZON
 PLA

CE 20

46

34

27

11

10

24

2

16

14

29

15 RODNEY GARDENS

6

Butts Mead

HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE

DOVECOT CL

14

54

50
12

32
38

45

Outfall

35

RODNEY GARDENS

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

50 Rodney Gardens

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
45146/APP/2017/1639

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



HARVIL ROAD

78a

78

61.9m

70

20

80

62.8m

´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

78a The Drive

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
38308/APP/2017/1130

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



34

Sta
ElSub

Def

Def

CF

PARKFIELD ROAD

61

53

Pavilion

42

52

55
53a

64

Mad Field Covert

41
41a

37

49

62

29

37

34a

43

32

30

51

55a

39

48

36

LB

57

39

37a

Ickenham GreenCricket Ground
´

June 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

54 Parkfield Road

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
20899/APP/2016/2376

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Eastcote Service Station - 3689/ADV/2017/16
	6 3 Olivia Gardens - 4672/APP/2017/765
	7 3 Albany Close - 72581/APP/2017/1057
	8 53-55 The Broadway, Joel Street - 5564/APP/2016/3908
	9 50 Rodney Gardens - 45146/APP/2017/1639
	10 78a The Drive - 38308/APP/2017/1130
	11 54 Parkfield Road - 20899/APP/2016/2376
	12 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	13 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

